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FA: Ah... 1 don't know if | even have the right to approach him, at least not for a while. Ah, but based
b on, ah, what he said supposedly, what the newspaper said he said, uh, it doesn't seem like he
ﬁ really had much respect for his daughter at ail, but } would send nat oniy him, but his family
& a lefter of apoiogy. | know if's
=
N
~] not really, it's, it's practically nothing, it does nothing te bring her back, but |, uh, tell hirm that | will be
EJ%] serving my tme and § will pay for what i've done. .
Q: Uhm, Jeremy, just a coupte of real quick things. Uhm, before we started this interview and before
we lumed on the tape, uhm, had we, had we threatened you at all in any way?
A No you did not.
Q: Okay. And did we make you any promises or considerations for giving us a statement?
A No you did not,
Q: Okay. Unm, does anybody else have any questions?
TURLEY: Phil or Bill, | dan't.
Q: Okay.
COLLETTE: Do you have any questions of us, Jeremy? Now's your time to ask us anything. any problems,
anything you need to discuss, iet us know.
A: NO questions,
Q; Ckay. Thatli be the end of

this statement, the same People are present, if's now 0310 hours,
Thanks very much,

= - - — ——
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Las Vepas, Nevada 89155-2211 g .
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i DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ;
Plaintiff, '
Case No: C116071
V5=
Dept No: Viii
VERNELL RAY EVANS,
#924477
Defendant. ;
JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (JURY TRIAL)

The Defendant previously entered plea(s) of not guiity to the crime(s) of COUNTS 2
THROUGH 5 - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony), in violation of
NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165, and the matter having been tried before a jury, and the

{| Defendant being represented by counsel and having been found guilty of the crime(s) of

.

C VTS 2 THROUGH 5 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON (Felony); and thereafter on the 17th day of March, 2004, the Defendant was
present in Court for sentencing with his counsel, PETE CHRISTIANSEN N, Esquire, and good

cause appesaring therefor,

THE DEFENDANT HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of the crime(s) as set forth in the
jury's verdict and, in addition to the $25.00 Administative Assessment Fee and $150.00
DNA Analysis Fee, the Defendant is sentenced as follows: Defendant is -SENTENCED-on
COUNT II to a MAXIMUM term of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE
with an EQUAL AND CONSECUTIVE term of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF

Fat IR vl »2

PAROLE for use of a deadiy weapon, CONSECUTIVE to COUNT I (on which Defendant

FAWPDOCSULUDGI0N 042392 doc

K
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has previously been sentenced to TEN YEARS, which term has expired); on COUNT [l 10 a
MAXIMUM term of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE with an EQUAL
AND CONSECUTIVE term of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE for use
of a deadly weapon, CONSECUTIVE to COUNT II; on COUNT IV to a MAXIMUM term
of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE with an EQUAL AND
CONSECUTIVE term of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE for use of a
deadly weapon, CONSECUTIVE to count I

i o+ W ey o A Nt N B AT Sy W W

yer COUNT V o a MAXIMUM temm of LIFE
WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE with an EQUAL AND CONSECUTIVE term
of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE for use of a deadly weapon,

CONSECUTIVE to COUNT IV. Defendant to receive 3,392 days credit for time served.
DATED this _2 3~ _ day of March, 2004,

m@ud‘:&-ﬂ; j
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& 2 | DAVDROGER o T
) DISTRICT ATT E : -
s Nevada Bar 4002781 —. .. fEBO4 094
2 3 v};}cxtgj MO?BROE £ : L e
Chief Deputy District Attorney . ﬁ ' Yo
! 4 || Nevada Bar #003776 L _Mﬁ?p\_@%@—_
~ 5 | Tas Vonts, Ty B0 1Eet221 A
as Vegas 2211 TMAAN - -
(702) a%s 5-4711 SHARON C \
6 | Attorney for Plaintiff
7 DISTRICT COURT
8 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9 | THE STATE OF NEVADA,
10 Plaintiff, | CASE NO: C116071
DEPT NO: VIl
il -Vs-
12 | VERNELL RAY EVANS,
#924477
13
14 Defendant. j
15 SENTENCING AGREEMENT
i6 I, VERNELL RAY EVANS, having been found guilty by a jury oft COUNTS 2
17 || THROUGH 5 FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
|
18 ! (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193 183)), hereby agree 10 enter into the following
19 {| sentencing agreement:
20 Both parties stipulate that the Defendant will be sentenced to a term of tife in the
21 || Nevada Department of Corrections without the possibibity of parole, plus an equal! and
22 || consecutive term of life in the Nevada Department of Cormrections without the possibility of
23 || parole for the deadly weapon enhancement, per count. Further, both parties stipulate that all
24 | counts will run consecutive to one another and will run consecutive to Count |, which the
25 I Defendantis currently serving time for. Additionaily, both parties agree that if the Court is
26 || not inclined to sentence the Defendant as stipulated, either party may withdraw from these
27 || negotiations and proceed to a pena!tly hearing.
2 | cawEn
7EB 64 2003
PAWPOOCSNPI0I0423504.doc
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CONSEQUENCES OF THE AGREEMENT

I understand that as a consequence of my having been found guilty of COUNTS 2

2ufeidlid J L

THROUGH 5 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(Felony), and as a consequence of this sentencing agreement, the Court must sentence me 1o
a term of life without the possibility of parole plus an equal and consecutive term of life with
out the possibility of parole as and for the deadly weapon enhancement for each count.

| [ understand that the law requires me to pay an Administrative Assessment Fee,

I understand that, if appropriate, [ will be ordered to make restitution to the victim of

y, wiltny T el ol 1
the offense(s) to w ¢en found guilty. | will also

e ordered to reimburse the

State of Nevada for any expenses related to my extradition, if any.

o

I understand that I am not eligible for probation for the offense to which 1 have been
found guiity.

! have not been promised or guaranteed any particular sentence by anyone. 1 know
that my sentence is to be determined by the Court within the limits prescribed by statute.

I understand that if my attorney or the State of Nevada or both recommend any
specific punishment to the Court, the Court is not obligated to accept the recommendation,

i undc%stand that if the State of Nevada has agreed to recommend or stipulate a
particuiar sentence or has agreed not to present argument
not to oppose a particular sentence, such agreement is contingent upon my appearance in
court on the initial sentencing date (and any subsequent dates if the sentencing is continued).
I understand that if 1 fail to appear for the scheduled sentencing dafc or I commit a new
criminat offense prior to sentencing the State of Nevada would regain the full right to argue

for any lawful sentence.

[ understand if the offense(s) to which [ have been found guilty to was committed
while I was arceraled on anoiher charge or while I was on probation or parole that [ am
not eligible for credit for time served toward the instant offense(s).

[ understand that the Division of Paroie and Probation will prepare

sentencing judge prior to sentencing. This report will include matters relevant 1o the issue of

1~J
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seatencing, including my criminal history. This report may contain hearsay information

regarding my background and criminal history.

1\: vy oo

aitormey and 1 wiil each have the

opportunity to comment on the information contained in the repont at the time of sentencing.

iy

Unless the District Attorney has specifically agreed otherwise, then the District Arltorney

may also comment on this report.

WAIVER OF RIGHTS

I understand that the Nevada Supreme Court has ordered a new penalty hearing for
me in this case. [ agree, after Speaking with attorneys, that it is in my best interests to accept
the conditions set forth in the sentencing agreement. 1 further agree that [ waive my right to
appeal my decision to waive my penalty hcanng al this time.,

VOLUNTARINESS OF PLE.

2 T Esirer L4

I have discussed with my attorney any possibie appellate issues and circumstances

which might be in my favor.

All of the foregoing elements, consequences, rights, and waiver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attorney.

I behieve that entering into this Sentencing agreement is in my best interest, and that a
penalty hcariffg would be contrary to my best interest.
, aiter consultation with my attorney, and { am
not acting under duress or coercion or by virtuc of any promises of lepiency, except for those
set forth in this agreement.

I am not now under the influence of any intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or
other drug which would in any manner impair my ability to comprehend or understand this
agreement or the proceedings surrounding my entry into this agreement.

My artorney has answered all my questions regarding this sentencing agreement and

-
-
™

1
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its consequences to my satisfaction and I am satisfied with the services provided by my

attomey. e

DATED this _~ __ day ofJarusry, 7004,

el

VERNELL RAY EVANS
Defendant

VICKI J. MONROE i —
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #003776

-,
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o t § CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL:
i
i 2 I the iindercioned ag the attamey for the Defendant named Rarein and ae an o fFimae 8
(‘:") B, LI ULIUCLSIEIG, dd Hlb atiUnilly LUl Wie Loilulddiil i U NICICH a1l 85 201 CIIICET O
the court hereby certify that
= 3
0 . : : :
~ {. [ have fully explained to the Defendant the allegations contained in the charge(s)
0 4 | and sentencing options for which the Defendant was convicted.
i g Of
5 2. 1 have advised the Defendant of the penalties for each charge and the restitution
6 that the Defendant may be ordered to pay.
2 A3 wwaiusre Anffarad iy thas Mafandant mitrciiant ta rhic aavasreontb meo oo obme &
. o TR WOLTRLD WRRbed Uy LI Crhabaiuoil puisuaiin W uid aieCineft alc COnsisient
7 with the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the Defendant.
8 4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the Defendant:
9 a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of the
agreement and waivers as provided in this agreement.
10 '
b. Executed this agreement voluntarily.
il
¢. Was not under the influence of intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or
12 other %ru at the titme | consulted with the delendant as certified in paragraphs
1 and 2 above.
Dated: This 4 day of Jemrary, 2004,
14
15 A
16 )
17 h
18
19
20
pa
22
23
24
25
26
27
mb
28
5
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(11 CODE 1785
? Richard A. Gammick
“ 2 || #ooisio
0 P.O. 30083
o3 Reno, NV. B9520 3083
{775)328-3200
4 Attorney for Plaintiff
5
& IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
7 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.
8 * * *
9 THE STATE OF NEVADA,
10 Plainciff, :
Case No. CR06-29574
11 V.
Dept. No. 6
12 VALERIE JEAN MOORE,
also known as
13 VALARIE MOORE,
14 Defendant.
15 /
ie6 GUILTY PLER MEMORANDUM
17 1. I, VYALERIE JEAN MCORE, also known as VALARIE MOORE,
ig understand that I am charged with the offense(s) cf: COUNT I FIRST
19 DEGREE ARSON, a violation of NRS 20%.010, a felony, and COUNTS II
20 through XIII MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, a vioclation of NRS 200.010
21 and NRS 200.030(1}{b), a felony.
22 2. I desire to enter a plea of guilty to the offense(s) of
23 COUNT I FIRST DEGREE ARSON, a violation of NRS 205.010, a felony,
24 and COUNTS IT through XIII MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, a violation
25 of NRS 200.010 and NRS 200.030(1) (b}, a felony, as more fully alleged
26 || ///
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11
12
13
14
15

16

22
23
24
25

26

in the charge(s} filed against me. I am competent to proceed and to
enter into this plea agreement with the State of Nevada.

3. By entering my plea of guilty I know and understand
that 1 am waiving the following constitutional rights:

A. 1 waive my

nrivilege against gelf-incrimination
v k1] r-‘,-l—“ﬂd-\.:u “uu*ll“h [ L W kR A e ¥R A & F LR

B. I waive my right to trial by jury, at which trial the

State would have to prove my guilt of all elements of the offenses

beyond a reasonable doubt.

C. 1 waive my right to confront my accusers, that is, the

right to confront and cross examine all witnesgses who would testify

at trial.

D. I waive my right to subpoena witnesses for trial on my

behalf.

4. I understand the charge(s) against me and that the
elements of the offense{s) which the State would have to prove beyond
a reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 31st day of October,
2006, or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did,

- T DT OOM PITrTE p Pt FUPUCEL T TF-TUE T - JU S
in i PlKol DhRbEE AROSUN, WI1LlIlEUlly,

Hotel, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada.

I understand the charge (s} against me and that the elements
of the offense{s) which the State would have to prove beyond a
reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 3lst day of October, 2006,
or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, 1 did, as to

Count If MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with

AA01481
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I understand the charge(s) against me and that the elements
of the offense(s) which the State would have to prove bevon
reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 31lst day of October, 200s,
or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
Count II1 MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and
with malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of ERNEST JAMES
DUARTE, a human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson,
said death occurring on QOctober 31, 2006.

I understand the charge(s) against me and that the elements
of the offense (s} which the State would have to prove beyond a

reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 3ist day of October, 2006,

Oor thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, 1 did, as to

-~
:
3
-
-

______ 1V MURDER In

v

THE FIRS

£

DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with
malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of PAUL DRUM SMITH, a

human being, durin

W

the comm he crime O

the crime of Arson, said death
occcurring on October 31, 2006.
I understand the charge(s) against me and thabk the

of the offense(s) which the State would have to prove beyond a

reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 3ist day of October, 2006,

or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to

Count V MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with

malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of CHRISTOPHER JAMES
17/
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COVERT, a human being, during the commission
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said death occurring on Octoper 31, 2006

- =1 a1
against me an

3
rt

of rhe offense(s) which the State would have to prove beyond

i

reascnable doubt at trial are that on the 31lst day of October, 2006,
or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
Count VI MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with
malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of NADINE INGE
NICODEMUS, a human being, during the commission of the crime of

Arson, said death occurring on Qctober 31, 2006.

I understand the charge(s) against me and that the elements

of the offense(s}) which the State would have to prove beyond a

reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 3lst day of Cctober, 2006,

or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to

Count VII MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and

PP TR S i
WiUo maii

e aforethought, ki

el

1 or cause the death of PHILLI

m

JAMES
BRIDGES, a human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson,

said death occurring on Octebher 11, 2006

Sy AR ORARLS RPLIT L Ly SRS

I understand the charge{s) against me and that the elements
of the offense(s) which the State would have to prove beyond a
reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 3ist day of October, 2006,
or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, T did, as to
Count VITI MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and
with malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of ALFORD EDWARD

YATES, a human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson,

said death occurring on October 31, 2006,

e
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(1 I understand the charge{s) against me and that the elements

()

n ; :

a 2 of the offense (s} which the State would have to prove beyond a

O

L= reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 31st day of October, 2006,
4 or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
5 Count IX MURDER IN THE FIRST DECGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with
6 malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of KEVIN M. SUTHERIN, a
7 human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson, said death
8 occurring on October 31, 2006,
9 I understand the charge{s} against me and that the elements
10 of the offense(s) which the State would have to prove beyond a
11 reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 31lst day of October, 2006,
12 or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
13 Count X MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with
14 malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of WILLIAM JOHN SERRAOC,
15 a human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson, said
16 death occurring on October 31, 2006.
17 I understand the charge{s}) againat me and that the elements
18 of the offense{s}) which the State would have to prove beyond a
19 reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 31st day of Octocber, 2006,
20 oY thereabout, in the County of HWashoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
21 Count XI MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and with
22 malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of SANTIAGO MCDONALD, a
23 human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson, said death
24 occurring on October 31, 2006.
25 I understand the charge(s) against me and that the elements
26

of the offense(s} which the State would have to prove beyond a

ui
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with malice aforethought, kill or cause the death of JEREMY LEE WREN,

a human being, during the commission of the crime of Arson, said

death occurring con QOcteober 21, 2006.

I understand the chargei(s) against me and that the elements

of the offense(.) which the State would have toc prove beyond a

reasonable doubt at trial are that on the 31st day of Qctober,

2606,
or thereabout, in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, as to
Count XIII MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, willfully, unlawfully, and

with maiice aforethought, kill or cause the death of DIANA BARBARA

POCHINI, a human being,

during the commission of the crime of Arson,

said death occurring on October 31, 2006,

5. I admit the facts which support all the elements of the

oifenses by pleading guilty. 1 adwit that the State possesses

sufficient evidence which would result in my conviction. I have

possible d

with my counsel, including but not limited to,

insanity, diminished

mental capacity, intoxication, lack of specific or other criminal

intent, alibi, that another person or persons committed the offenses

and that the fire was accidentally caused, or otherwise not
intentionally set by myself or any other person. I understand that

any substantive or procedural pretrial issue or issues which could

have been raised at trial are waived by my plea.

iy
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6. I understand that the consegquences of my plea of
guilty, as to Count I FIRST DEGREE ARSON, are that I may be
imprisoned for a minimum period of two and a maximum period of

fifteen years in the Nevada State Department of Corrections and that

=

. ¥ -
am el n. I m

nay also be fined up to $15,000.00
I understand that the consequences of my plea of guiley, as
to Count II MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be imprisoned

for a period of life with or without the possibility of parcle or for

a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State Department of

Corrections and that I am not eligible for probation., I understand

that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with the

possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty years,
eiigibility for parole begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served.

I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as

to Count III MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be

imprisoned for a period of life with or without the possibility of

arcle or for a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State

Department of Corrections and that I am not eligible for probation.

I understand that if the

nalty

4 3 A N -
penalty is f g

ixed at life imprisonment with
the possibility of parcle, or for a definite term of fifty vears,
eligibility for parole begins when a minimum of twenty vears ha

served.

I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as

Lo Count IV MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be imprisocned

for a period of life with or without the possibility of pareole or for

AA01486
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a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State Department of

Corrections and that I am not eligible for probation. I understand

- t.

that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with the
possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty vyears,

ty for parole begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty

to Count V MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be impriscned
for a period of life with or without the possibility of parcle or for

a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State Department of

Corrections and that I am not eligible for probaticn. I understand

that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with the

possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty years,
eligibility for parole begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served.

I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as

to Count VI MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be imprisocned

~
for d

1 .

of life with or without the possibility of parole or for

R T k]
a perio

a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State Department of

probation. 1 understand
that if the penalty is fixed at life lmprisonment with the

possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifry years,

eligibility for parocle begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served.

I understand that the conseguences of my plea of guilty, as

te Count VIT MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be

AA01487
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imprisoned for a period of life with or without the possibility of
parole or for a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State
Department of Corrections and that T am not eligible for probation.

I understand that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with
the posgibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty years
eligibility for parole begins when a minimum cf twenty years has been

served.

I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as
to Count VIII MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that 1 may be
imprisoned for a pericd of 1life with or without the possibility of
parole or for a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State
Department of Currections and that I am not eligible for probation.

I understand that i1f the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with

the possibility of parcle, or for a definite term of fifty vyears,

eligibility for parole begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served.

1 understand that the conseguences of my plea of gquilty, as

that I may be imprisoconed

for a period of life with or without the possibility of parole or for

Corrections and that I am not eligible for probation. I understand

that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with the

possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty vyears,

eligibility for parcle begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served.

/1
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1 understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as

to Count X MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be imprisoned

for a period of life with or without the possibility of parsle or for

a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State Department ol

am mear olicinla foar nrobation T understand
(=9 1% BivV Ao ‘-J.L‘jl.ul‘- I L t.lh\-lu\-‘\-—‘vﬂ‘o
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that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with the
possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty years,

eligibility for parole begins when a minimum of twenty vyears has bpeen

served.

I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as

to Count ¥XI MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be imprisoned

for a period of life with or vithout the possibility of parole or for

a definite term of fifty vyears in the Nevada State Department of

Corrections and that I am not eligible for probation. I understand

that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with the
possibility of parcle, or for a definite term of fifty vyears,

eligibility for parole begins when a minimum of Lwenty years has been

served.
I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty, as

Fey Coaaimye ¥TT MITRMEDR T
LR N e R SR A £k L 4 det Bt £

A y

.
‘Z‘

TUE TDRDCST NIRRT v FhRak T maow e
I » ¥ o/ a5 o 1 S ) L § 14 'l o iz L Hi =

=
’ L3 L+

imprisoned for a period of life with or without the possibility of
parcle or for a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State

Department of Corrections and that I am not eligible for probation.
I understand that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with

the possibility of parole, or for a

17,

definite term of fifty vears,

AA01489
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12

13

14
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16

22

23

24

25

- 26

eligibility for parole begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served.

I understand that the conseguences of my plea of guilty, as
to Count XIII MURDER IN THE FIRST DEGREE, are that I may be

imprisoned for a period of life with o

P T Y

sibilicy of

o

without t

o}
wr

e po
parole or for a definite term of fifty years in the Nevada State

it of Corrections and that

1=

am not eli

w

ible for probation

I understand that if the penalty is fixed at life imprisonment with
the possibility of parole, or for a definite term of fifty vears,
eligibility for parcle begins when a minimum of twenty years has been

served. The sentence on each count may be concurrent or consecutive

to each other.

7. In exchange for my plea of guilty, and pursuant to this

plea agreement, the State will not file or pursue the de

P

ath penalty.

I understand and agree that if I do not plead guilty to First Degree

Arson and twelve counts of Murder in the First Degree, or if I at any

time challenge my conviction or sentence and am successful, the State

reserves the right to file and pursue the death penalty. For this

purpose, I hereby waive any right 1 may have under Supreme Court Rule

250(4) to re State

ile notice of intent to seek the
death penalLy within thirty days of the filing of a criminal

Information.

I agree to be sentenced by a single Judge pursuant to NRS

175.552{1) {c}. I waive any right to have a jury decide the penalty

for any of these offenses.

/11

AA01490
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12

13

14

15

16
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In exchange for my plea of gﬁilty, the State, my couns..
and I have agreed to recommend the following: Both parties shall
recommend a minimum sentence of 6 years and a maximum sentence of 15
years on Count I FIRST DEGREE ARSON. On Counts 11 through XIII
MURDER IN DEGREE, the parties shall recommend a sentence of
life without the possibility of parole on each count. The sentences
imposed upon all thirteen counts are to run consecutively with each
and every other count. For this reascn, neither my counsel nor I
will present any evidence or argument in mitigation of these crimes
at sentencing. I further understand and agree that the sentence on
eacn and every count must run consecutively to my prior Washoe County
conviction for MURDER IN THE SECOND DEGREE WITH THE USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON (C87-452}, for which crime 1 was on parole during the
commission of the instant offenses. The State will not file any
additional criminal charges against me stemming from this arrest.

8. I understand that, even though the State .and I have
reached this plea agreement, the State is reserving the right to
present arguments, facts, and/or witnesses at sentencing in support

of the plea agreement.

5. 1 also agree that I will make full restituvrion in this
matter, as determined by the Court.
10. I understand that the State, in its discretion, is

entitled to either withdraw from this agreement and proceed with the
prosecution of the original charges or be free to argue for an
appropriate sentence at the time of sentencing if I fail to appear at

any scheduled proceeding in this matter OR if prior to the date of my

1z

AA01491
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g

ey sentencing I am arrested in any jurisdiction for a vioclation of law

>

E]Z OR if I have misrepresented my prior criminal history. I represent

O . .

0 3 that I have multiple felony and misdemeanor convictions all known to

——

4 the State, including a 1987 conviction for MURDER IN THE SECOND
5 DEGREE WITH THE USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON in Washoe County, Nevada I
& understand and agree that the occurrence of any of these acts
7 constitutes a material breach of my plea agreement with the State. I
8 further understand and agree that by the execution of this agreement,
9 1 am waiving any right I may have to remand this matter to Justice
10 Court should I later be permitted teo withdraw my plea.

11 11. I understand and agree that pursuant to the terms of
12 the plea agreement stated herein, any counts which are tc be
13 dismissed and any other cases charged or uncharged which are either
14 to be dismissed or not pursued by the State, may be considered by the
15 court at the time of my sentencing.
16 12, I understand that the Court is not bound by the
17 agreement of the parties and that the matter of sentencing is to be
18 determined solely by the Court. I have discussed the charge{s}, the
19 tacts and the possible defenses with my attorney. All of the
20 foregoing rights, waiver of rights, elements, possible penalties, and
21 consequences, have been carefully explained to we by my attorney. I
22 am satisfied with my counsel's advice and representation leading to
23 this resolution of my case. 1 am aware that if I am not satisfied
24 with my counsel I should advise the Court at this time. I believe
25 that entering my plea is in my best interest and that going to trial
26 is not in my best interest.

AA01492
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22
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13. I understand that this plea and resulting conviction

may have adverse effects upon wmy residency in this country if I am

not a U. 8. Citizen.

14. I offer wmy plea freely, voluntarily, knowingly and
with full understanding of all matters set forth in the Information
and in this Plea Memorandum. I understand everything coatained

within this Memorandum.

15. My plea of guilty is voluntary and is not the result
of any threats, coercion or promises of leniency.

l6. I am signing this Plea Memorandum voluntarily with

advice of counsel, under no duress, coercion, or promises of

leniency.

DATED this {Q ’( day of /#d-;;zfrr'zw , Q:-"z’?.
o ;;

DEFENDANT

Attorney Witnessing
Pefendant's Signature

N ] ;-
Nthd 1/ L4

Prosecutihg Attorney

/17
/1/
/17
/17
/17
/17

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TQ NRS 239B.030
11
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The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document does not contain the social security number of any person.

. f?‘)(_ i g N
th s i/ day of /

DATED 262 iy
7’ =
e t
()9 o
N V
Prosecutlwb Attorney/
12193347
is
AA01494
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b 2 DISTRICT COURT SWIRLEY o, FARRASL...™ e, CLGsT
(l;l) 3 CLARK COUNTY, N};VA@{\
= ALAN PAUL SR DER
o 4 || THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) uTy
)
S 5 Plaintiff, - Case No. C204775
6 -vs- Dept No. IX
7
JAMES A. SCHOLL,
8
A Defendant.
9 —_— r
10 SPECIAL
i VERDICT
12 We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, JAMES A.
13 1 SCHOLL, Guilty of COUNT 7 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE, designate that the
14 | aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been
15 } established beyond a reasonable doubt.
16 X The murder was committed by Defendant, who before the penalty hearing is
17 # conducted, will have been convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the
18 } person of another, to-wit: Count 3 of the Informalion charging the Defendant with Robbe ery
19 I With Use of 2 Deadly Weapon.
20 i X_The murder involved torture of the victim.
21 DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this |7 dayof February, 2006.
23 -
iy W
25
26
27 ﬂ
28

X TV a Vs SEN——
ANNUTHIO
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& 3 PAUL AR
DISTRICT COURT srbL..-_.
6 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7
8 | THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
9 Plaintiff, % CaseNo. 204775 ’
-v§- } Dept No. IX
JAMES A. SCHOLL, ‘
Defendant.
SPECIAL
VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found

SCHOLL, Guilty of COUNT 7 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE, designate that the

mitigating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been
established.

{1 x The murder was committed while James Scholl was under the influence

of extreme mental or emotional disturbance;

(2) XX The Defendant suffered as a child and young adult with emotional
disabilities;

(3) _L The Defendant has no significant prior criminal history;

(4)_{__ At the time of the commission of the crime, Defendant
influence of controlled substances or alcohol; .

GY_X _ Ata very young age, the Defendant was thrust into a position of
adulthood and was ill-equipped to handie those responsibilities;

AAUTI4Y7
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(6) & Any other mitigating circumstances,

\\\QU G &‘D‘\_f\\ r;"i'\m\)
Crpdbrpaeamad AC s W;Lnnb)

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this | 1 _ day of February, 2006,

AA01498
2JDC05804



@
o

EXHIBIT B2

EXHIBIT B2

AA01499

2JDCO5805



* y 9 -
‘ L @ ~ &
2
b e
» FEBI7 006 2540 . m.
5 2 ST S R CLidaK
G 3 BY,
Q 4 ALAN PAUL SRDZEPUTY
n
a0 5 DISTRICT COURT
- 6 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
71 .
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
8 _
Plaintiff, § Case No C204775
9
-Vs- Dept No iX
10
i1 | JAMES A, SCHOLL, ;
12 Defendant. g
13
14 VERDICT
s We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, JAMES A,
16 SCHOLL, Guilty of COUNT 7 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE and having found
.~ || that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating circumstance or
L )
18 " circumstances impose a sentence of,
19
20 A definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with eligibility for parole
2] beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served,
22 Life in Nevada Department of Comrections With the Possibility of Parole.
23 k 2{ Life in Nevada Department of Corrections Without the Possibility of Parole.
Death.
24 _
2 DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this {7 day of February, 2006 /;;;:‘;f—
//
26 mﬁu?E%%fiaf“”)
27
28
f
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20

21 feloniously take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currency and a

22
23

24
25

26

27!

28I
:

in his possession, or under his control, a weapon, to-wit: firearms, the said JOSE MANUEL

VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Percz being an cx-felon, having in February, 1991, been

convicted of Conspiracy to Possess With Intent to Distribute Cocaine, Distribution of Cocaine,

Possession of Cocaine With Intent to Distribute, and Assault Upon Federal Officers, in the
United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Case No. CR-8-90-164-P P (LC L),
a felony under the laws of the State of Nevada.

CQUNT 4 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about 20th day of September, 1998 then and there wilfully, unlawfuily, and
feloniously take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currency and s Smith & Wesson .38 tevolver,

bearing Serial No. #BDB3765, from the person of WERNER BOEHNKGE, or in his presence,
by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will

of the said WERNER BOEHNKE, said Defendan 1t using a deadiy weapon, to-wit: a fircarm,

dunng the commission of said crime; Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS giding

or abetting each other in the commnission of said acts by acting in concert with each other; and/or

being present before during and afier said crime; and/or Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ

CISNEROS directly or indirectly counseling, encouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or

supervising the actions of the other; and/or Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS
acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Murder,

COUNT 5 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

N
did, on or about 20th day of September, 1998, then and there wi wilfully, unlawfully, an
Sm

mith & Wesson .18 revoly

bearing Serial No. #BDE5765, from the person of BRIAN LANE, or in his presence, by means

of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said
BRIAN LANE, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, during the commission
of said crime; Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNERQOS aiding or abetting each other in
the commission of said acts by acting in concert with each other; and/or being present before

during and afier said crime; and/or Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS, directly or

indirectly counseling, encouraging, assisting, ““i‘:‘ii"i“ﬁiﬁ inducing or supervising the act:ons

-3- PAWPDOCSUNFI 0910935403, WP Dlgb
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the otner; and/or Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant to a
2 | Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Murder.

H -
ig v

COUNT 6 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about the 28th day of June, 1999, then and there, without authority of law and
§ malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt to kil DONALD BOWMAN, a huma

W AN R DIEED

H being, by shooting at and into the body of said DONALD BOWMAN, with a deadly weapon,

to-wit: firearms: Glock Model 21 semi-automatic firearm, bearing Senial No. CMZ184US
and/or Norinco Mak 90 assault rifle, bearing Serial No. 616488; Defendant JOSE MANUEL
VIGOA, aka Josc Manuel Vigoa-Perez, and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS directly
committing said acts; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS, aiding or abetting ¢ach other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert

12§ with each other; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
13

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
0

pawd

-

1

CISNEROQS, being present before during and after said crime; and/or Defendant, PEDRO

143 RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS, directly or indirectly counseling,

15 encouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or supervising the actions of the other; and/or

16 § PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE driving the getaway vehicle; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL
17§ DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit
18 } Robbery and/or Murder.

19§ COUNT 7 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
20

did, on or about the 28th day of June, 1999, then and there, without authority of law and
21 § malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt to kill CHARLEY FICHTER, a human

22 being, by shooting at and into the body of said CHARLEY FICHTER, with a dead!
23

24
25

y weapon,
f to-wit: firearms: Glock Model 21 semi-automatic firearm, bearing Scrial No. CMZ184US
and/or Norinco Mak 90 assault rifle, bearing Serial No. 616488, Defendant JOSE MANUEL
| VIGOA, aka Jose Manucl VigoaPerez, and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS directly
<6 | committing said acts; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
27§ CISNEROS, aiding or abetting cach other in the commission of said acts by acting in co

28 | with each other; and/or Defendant, PEDRQ RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SAN

2 LB AW Y ANSAT AL whaani S ailc WA om‘tcm
-4 PAWPDOCSAUNF 01093 5403, WP DN h
B
AA01395
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CISNEROS, being present before during and afier said crime; and/or Defendant, PEDRO
2] RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNERQS, directly or indirectly counseling,

3" encouraging, assntm , command

Ty T sania

indurann A b
b

T supervising the actions of the other; and/or
| PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE driving the getaway vehicle; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL
| DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant to a Conspiracy 1
6§ Robbery and/or Murder.

COUNT & - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about the 28th day of June, 1999, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully and
feloniously attempt to take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currency, from the person of

TUATRT AT ¥ Purwvvirs o o vy

i UUNALD BUWMAN, or in his presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and

without the consent and against the will of the said DONALD BOWMAN, Defcndam using a

deadly weapon, to-wit: firearms: Glock Model 21 semi-automatic firearm bearing Serial No.

CMZ184US and’or Norinco Mak 90 assault nifle, bearing Serial No. 616488, during the
commission of said crime; by Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ

O8, aiding or abeiting each other in the commission of sajd acts by acting in concert

18} with each other; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
S

194 CISNEROS, being present before d during and afier said crime; and/or Defendant, PEDRO

20 ] RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNERQS, directly or indirectly counseling,

21 i encouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or supervising the acti

ions of the other; and/or

223 PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE driving the getaway vehicle; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL
23 | DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit

ﬂ Robbery and/or Murder.
:
i

251 COUNT 9 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about the 28th day of June, 1999, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully and

L
FAL)

27 feloniously attempt to take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currcucy, from the person of

28 § CHARLEY FICHTER, or in his presenice, by mean f force o

g Fa)

I or fear of injury to, and

-5. PAWPDOCS\EIFIO 10935403, WPDKh
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without the consent
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against the will of the said CHARLEY FICHTER, Defendant using a

deadly weapon, to-wit: firearms: Glock Model 21 semi-automatic fircarm with Serial No.
CMZ184U8S and/or Norinco Mak 90 assault rifle, Bearing Serial No. 616488, during the

commission of said crime; by Defendant, PEDRQ RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
§ CISNEROS shooting at the said victim for the purpose of obtaining U.S. Currency from the
armored truck; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ

{ CISNEROS, being present before during and after said crime; and/or Defendant, PEDRO

DATTATT YhitiVaros _ Ryt alr B et

RAFAEL DUARTE end OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS, directly or indirectly counseling,

cncouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or supervising the actions of the other; and/or

PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE driving the getaway vehicle; and/or Defendant, m:-‘nnn RAFAEL

DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant to a Consptracy to Commit

4 ﬂ Robbery and/or Murder.

15
16
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

COUNT 10 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
did, on or about the 28th day of Junc, 1999, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully and

l!ﬂ fcioniously attemnpt to take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currency, from the person of

RANDY EASTON, or in his presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and

without the consent and against the will of the said RANDY EASTON, Defendant using a

deadly weapon, to-wit: ﬁrearms_: Glock Model 21 scmi-automatic fircarm with Serial No.
CMZ184US and/or Norince Mak 90 assault rifle, Bearing Serial No. 616488, during the
comynission of said crime; by Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS shooting at the said victim for the purpose of obtaining U.S. Currency from the
armored truck; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS, aiding or abetting each other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert
: with each other; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNERCS, being present before during and afier said crime; and/or Defendant, PEDRO
RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS. directl

=t = ST Wi ws aamw W Bk, Fy 5vv }’w

-6- PAWPDOCS\INFL 0501093 5403. WP DAgh

CISNEROS, aiding or abetting cach other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert :
with each other; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ
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PEDRO RAFAEL DUARTE dniving the getaway vehicle; and/or Defendant, PEDRO RAFAEL

| DUARTE and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant t

l Robbery and/or Murder.

COUNT 11 - POSSESSION OF FIREARM BY EX-FELON
Defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez, did, on or about the

28th day of June, 1999, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously own or have in his

possession, or under his control, a weapon, to-wit: Norinco Mak 90 assault rifle, bearing Serial
No. 616488, the said JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez being an ex-felon,

having in

-

ruary, 1991, been convicied of Conspiracy to Possess With Intent to Distribute

=R T TR

-

Bl
[~

Cocaine, Distribution of Cocaine, Possession of Cocaine With Intent to Distribute, and Assaulit
Upon Federal Officers, in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Case No.

CR-8-90-164-PMP (LRL), a felony under the laws of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 12 - POSSESSION OF FIREARM BY EX-FELON

Defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manucl Vigoa-Perez, did, on or about the
28th day of June, 1999, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously own or have in his

i

ﬂ possession, or under his control, a weapon, to-wit: Glock Model 21 semi-automatic firearm,
l bearing Serial No. CMZ184US, the said JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-
Perez being an ex-felon, having in February, 1991, been convicted of Conspiracy to Peoss
With Intent to Distribute Cocaine, Distribution of Cocaine, Possession of Cocaine With Intent
to Distribute, and Assault Upon Federal Officers, in the United States District Court for the

|

District of Nevada, in Case No. CR-8-90-164-PMP (LRL), a felony under the laws of the State
of Nevada.,

S e = P S S ST e T

LURINT 13 - POSSESSION OF STOLEN VERICLE
did, on or about the 28th day of June, 1999, then and there wilfuily, unlawfully, and

O LI P MR e ¥ 11T

n CURTIS YVONNE LEWIS,
while in the possession of KENNETH PANIELLO, to-wit: a 1995 Isuzu Rodco, bearing
VIN#SZCGS58V 584302390, and stolen Nevada License Plate No, 2894-HNS, which Defendant

S E PAWFDOCSUNFILOA 0935403 WPDGE
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COUNT 14 - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM

did, on or about the 11th day of October, 1999, then and there wil

]
LT =iV & S Wy A S S & AREA AAWE W EFF Y

i feloniously enter, with intent to commit robbery and/or murder, while in possession of a fircarm,
that certain building occupied by MANDALAY BAY HOTEL, located at 3950 Las Vegas
Boulevard South, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT 15 - POSSESSION OF FIREARM BY EX-FELON

Defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Percz, did, on or about the

I 11th day of October, 1999, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously own or have in
his possession, or under his control, a weapon, to-wit: firearms, the said JOSE MANUEL
i VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez being an ex-felon, having in February, 1991, been
convicted of Conspiracy to Possess With Intent to Distribute Cocaine, Distribution of Cocaine,
l Possesston of Cocmnc With Intent to Distribute, and Assauit Upon Federal Officers, in the
14 [| United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Case No. CR-8-90-164-PMP (LRL),
15 [ a felony under the laws of the State of Nevada.
16 | COUNT 16 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

17 did, on or about the 11th day of October, 1999, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and

19§ revolver, bearing Serial No. CCT5873, from the person of KYLE CARNEY, or in his

PO AT Y
TR WAR

Pl e e LT ]

20 § by means of force or violence, or fear of i injury to, and without the consent and against the will

21 § of the said KYLE CARNEY, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, during
22 § the commission of said crime; Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNERQS aiding or
23 § abetting each other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert with each other; and/or
24 ¥ being present before during and after said crime; and/or Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNERGQS, directly or mduectly counseling, encouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or

18 ¥ feloniously take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Cumrency and Smith & Wesson .38 caliber |

26 | supervising the actions of the other; and/or Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS
27 ] acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Murder
28371/
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1| COUNT 17 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
‘2 did, on or about the 11th day of October, 1999, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and

3 feloniously take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currency and Smith & Wesson .40 caliber
revolver firearm, bearing Serial No. EKZ8317, from the person of KENNETH HUDERSKI, or

ln h!S Dresence bY mneans Df fﬁfﬂﬂ OfF VIO _'g‘n{_" T tear 0! }plll“}' [7eY nnd writhavt th e "

e T W Wy w s

4

5

61 against the will of the said KENNETH HUDERSK], said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to-
78 wit: 2 firearm, during the commission of said crime; Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ
8

CISNEROS aiding or abetting each other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert

9 ! with each other; and/or being present before during and after said crime; and/or Defendant and
10§ OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS, directly or indirectly counseling, encouraging, assisting,
11§ commanding, inducing or supervising the actions of the other; and/or Defendant and OSCAR

12 SANCHEZ CISNEROS acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Murder.

13§ COUNT 18 - POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE

14 did, on or about the 11th day of October, 1999, then and there wilfully, unlaw fally, and
15 ¢ feloniously possess a stolen motor vehicle wrongfuily taken from THRIFTY CAR RENTAL,
167 376 Warm Springs Road, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, to-wit: a 1999 Jeep Grand
17§ Cheroker, bearing VIN#1J4GW58S1XC619922, and stolen Califoria License Plate #4FNR022,
18} which Defendant knew, or had reason to belisve, had been stolen.

COUNT 9 - FiR T DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN

i o P T aW LT 1
i r about March 3, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, with malice

aforeﬁlonght and premeditation and deliberation and/or by means of lying in wait and/or during
the perpetration or attempled perpetration of Robbery, wilfully and feloniously kill RICHARD
24| SAMAYOA SOSA, a human being, by shooting at and into the body of RICHARD SAMAYOA
25§ SOSA, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Norinco Mak 90 assault riflc bearing
26| serial #616488 and/or Smith and Wesson .38 caliber fircarm bearing serial # CCT5873, during
27 the commission of said crime, defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-
said acts and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and

G- PAWPDOCS\VP DM 10935403 WPDkih
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ing or abetting each other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert

or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ

crime; and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ directly or indirectly counseling, encoursging, assisting,
commanding, inducing or supervising the actions of the other; and/or Defendant, QSCAR
SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ acting pursuant to a Conspiracy 10 Commit
4 Robbery and/or Murder,

COUNT 20 - FIRST E%GREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON {OPEN

€ N e - & b b

PR,

did, on or about March 3, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, with malice

—
[

aforethought and premeditation and/or by means of lying in wait and/or during the perpetration
or attempted perpetration of Rebbery, wilfully and feloniously kill GARY DEAN PRESTIDGE,
13
14
15

16

12)

a human being, by shooting at and into the body of GARY DEAN PRESTIDGE, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to-wit: 2 Norinco Mak 90 assault nfle bearing scrial #616488 and/or
Smith and Wesson .38 caliber firearm bearing serial # CCT5873, during the commission of said
i crime, defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez, directly committing
i said acts and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and LUIS SUAREZ aiding or

17
18
19
20
21

22

abetting each other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert with each other; and/or

Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ being present before, during

and after said crime; and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ
directly or indirectly counseling, encouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or supervising
the actions of the other; and/or Detfendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS
SUAREZ acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or Murder.
COUNT 21 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON _

did, on or about the 3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and
y take personal property, to-wit: U.S. Currency, from the person of RICHARD
27 § SAMAYOA SOSA, or in his presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and

28 ]| without the consent and against the will of the said RICHARD SAMAYOA SOSA said

Lisi LI LY P A LW SLYANL 3 WAO OVASA, il
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1 & Defend

co Mak 90 assault rifle, bearing Serial No.
616488 and/or Smith & Wesson .38 caliber revolver bearing Serial No. CCT 5873, during the
! commussion of said crime; Defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA. aka Jose Manue I Vigoa-P

s b Ra AN e T b ad usuuu\.-

2

3

4} directly committing said acts and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and LUIS
5 I SUAREZ aiding or abetting each other in the commission of said acts by acting in concert with
6 ! cach other; and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ being
71 present before, during and after said crime; and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS
AND LUIS SUAREZ directly or indirectly counseling, encouraging, assisting, commanding,
inducing or supervising the actions of the other; and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ

CISNERQS AND LUIS SUAREZ acting pursuant to a Conspiracy to Commit Robbery and/or

11 § Murder.

8
9
0

12§ CQUNT 22 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPQON

13 did, on or about the 3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and

14 feloniously take personal property, to-wit: U.S, Currency, from the person of GARY DEAN

. H
15} PRESTIDGE, or in his presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without

16§l the consent and against the will of the said GARY DEAN PRESTIDGE, said Defendant using

1 7 PO P

/ § & Geadly weapon, to-wit: 8 Norinco Mak 90 assauli rifle, bearing Serial No. 616488 and/or Smith

18} & Wesson .38 caliber revolver bearing Serial No. CCT5873, during the commission of said
cmnei Defendant JOSE MANUJEL V](-‘nA aka Jose Man

Manuel V agua-n:uu uucbuy co:mmmng !

said acts and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and LUIS SUAREZ aiding or |-
abetting each other in the comumission of said acts by acting in concert with each other; and/or |-

2§ Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ being present before, during
23 } and after said crime; and/or Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS SUAREZ

24§ directly or indirectly counseling, encouraging, assisting, commanding, inducing or supervising

25 | the actions of the other; and/or Dcfcndant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS AND LUIS

26 § SUAREZ acting pursuant to a Conspiracy 1o Commit Robbery and/or Murder.
111
i
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COUNT 23 - POSSESSION

x

Defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez, did, on or about the
3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and felonicusly own or have in his

possession, or under his control, a weapon, to-wit: a Norinco Mak 90 assault nflc, bearing Serial
No. 616488, the said JOSE MANUEL VIGQA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez being an ex-felon,
having in February, 1991, been convicted of Conspiracy to Possess With Intent to Distribute

IR T S -NUR % R )

Cocaine, Distribution of Cocaine, Possession of Cocaine With Intent to Distribute, and Assault
Upon Federal Officers, in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, in Case No.
CR-§-90-164-PMP (LRL), a felony under the laws of the State of Nevada.

Cn! INT24. POSSESSIG}‘! GF an ATan A B‘Ir ﬁ\r-FELGN

et
— [l AY ] 0

Defendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez, did, on or about the

12 § 3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, un]awfuilv and feloniously own or have in hic

131 possession, or under his control, a weapon, to-wit: a Smith & Wesson .38 Caliber revolver,

14 § bearing Scrial No. CCT5873, the said JOSE MANUEL VIGOA, aka Jose Manuel Vigoa-Perez

13 § being an ex-felon, having in February, 1991, been convicted of Conspiracy to Possess With

16 § Intent to Distribute Cocaine, Distribution of Cocaine, Possession of Cocaine With Intent to

1?_& "L‘.. PR Ty S |

vute, and Assauit Upon Federal Officers, in the United States District Court for the District
18] of Nevada, in Case No. CR-S-90-164-PMP (LRL), a felony under the laws of the State of
19 [ Nevada.

20§ COUNT 25 - POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE

21 did, on or about the 3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, uniawfully, and
22 | feloniously posscss a stolen motor vehicle wrongfully taken from THRIFTY CAR RENTAL,
23 § 376 Warm Springs Road, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, to-wit: a 2000 Plymouth Voyager,
24 § bearing VIN#1P4GP45G8YB529568, and stolen Arizona License Plate No. 184-DZS., which

25 § Defendant knew, or had reason to believe, had been stolen.

26 § COUNT 26 - POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE

did, on or about the 3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and

28 || feloniously possess a stolen motor vehicle wrongfully taken from THRIFTY CAR RENTAI

! s2 28 - AssREL & & A RAW wa‘AJlH’
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d, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, to-wit: a 2000 Plymouth Voyager,

bearing VIN#1P4GP45G1YBS527029 9, and stolen Utah License Plate No. 690-KRG, which

2

3 E Defendant knew, or had reason to believe, had been stolen.

4! COQUNT 27 - POSSESSION OF STOLEN VEHICLE

5 did, on or about the 3rd day of March, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and
6 j feloniously possess a stolen motor vehicle wrongfully taken from THRIFTY CAR RENTAL,
7E 376 Warm Springs Road, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, to-wit; 2 2000 Dodge Intrepid,

bearing WN#ZBBHD46R6YH128532 and stolen Utah License Plate No. 992-XNY, which
Defendant knew, or had reason to believe, had been stolen.

E COUNT 28 - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY

did, on or about Junc 3, 2000, then and there meet with each other and an unknown
individual and between themselves, and each of them with the o ther, wilfully and unlawful
13 § conspire and agree to commit a crime, to-wit: burglary, and in furtherance of said conspiracy,

Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS did, together with the unknown individual,

commit the acts as set forth in Count 23, said acts being incorporated by this reference as though
16 |j fuily set forth herein.

17T OOITNITHI0  DIMor 2 e e o= = e

L7 paasuilNg oF - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM
ﬂ did, on or about June 3, 2000, together with an unknown individua), then and there

wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter, while in possession
20 § commit larceny, that certain building occupied by BELLAGIO HOTEL & CASINO, located at
3600 Las Vegas Boulevard South, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada,

CQUNT 30 - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT ROBBERY

did, on or about June 3, 2000, then and there meet with each other and an unknown
individual and between themselves, and each of them with the other, wilfully, unlawfully, and

feloniously, conspire and agree to comumit a crime, to-wit; robbery, and in furtherance of said

i conspiracy, Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROCS did, ogether with the unknown
i

individual, commit the acts as set forth in Counts 25 through 29, said acts being incorporated by
this reference as though fully set forth herein.

-13- PAWPDOCS\INFL 010935403 WPDAKh
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did, on or about June 3, 2000, then and th wﬂfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to-wit: law

PV Eesly Vv l‘"li}

the United States, from the person of TERI M.

POTTER, or in her presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of i injury to, and without the
consent and against the will of the said TERI M. POTTER, said Defendant using a deadly

Baag,

weapon, to-wit: firearms, during the commission of said crime; the said Defendant, and the

unkrown individual aiding or abetting each other through counsel and encourage and/or

conspiring among cach other whereby the Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS are
; vicariously liable for the actions of the others, and by entering into a course of conduct whereby

e Thafam 2ot A AT O 4 % romr proms .......... — _

I DRIGILAIL USLAR SANUHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual arrived together

at the BELLAGIO HOTEL & CASING where D cfendant JOSE MANUEL VIGOA acted as a

lookout outside the casino cage while OSCAR CISNERQOS SANCHEZ, aka Oscar Sanchez

Cisneros and the unknown individual entered the sajd cage to take money; thereafier the said
Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual left together; the said
Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual acting in concert

throughout the commission of the said crime.

TTH ONIMDTT 2 DATTLS ST s =
ar

AL 24 - RUBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

D W 0 O h W N

[S"] e L] it - e L
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18 did, on or about June 3, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
19 § personal property, to-wit; lawful money of the United States, from the person of DAVID JOHN
20 l BURTON, or in his presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the

consent and against the will of the said DAVID JOHN BURTON, said Defendant and OSCAR

e T

SANCHEZ CISNEROS usinga deadly weapon, to-wit: firearms, during the commission of said

aiding or abetting cach other through counsel and encourage and/or conspiring among each other

whereby the Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS are vicariously liable for the

} actions of the others, and b Yy eniering into a course of conduct whereby the Defendant, OSCAR.
¥

SANCHEZ CISNEROS end the unknown individual arrived together at the BELLAGIO
HOTEL&CASINO where Defendant JOSEMANUEI VIGOA acted as a lookout out

P
v 1€ x{ ) 1WOOEOUL OuUtsiae tn
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unknown individual entered the said cage to take money; thereafter the said Defendant, OSCAR
SANCHEZ CISNEROS and t v

o 8 oo . e
R Nl &V kB W Y W F

left together; the said Defendant, OSCAR
SANCHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual acting in concert throughout the
commission of the said crime.
COUNT 33 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 3, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to-wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of HUEY ROTH,
or-in his presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent
ad apainst & HiTEY

gainst the will of the said HUEY ROTH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to-wit:

fircarms, during the commission of said crime; the said Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS and the unknown individual aiding or abetting each other through counsel an

tting each othe through counsel and
encourage and/or conspiring among each other whereby the Defendant and OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS are vicariously liable for the actions of the others, and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby the Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual
arrived together at the BELLAGIO HOTEL & CASINO where Defendant JOSE MANUEL

viGOA acted as a lookout outside the casino cage while OSCAR CISNEROS SANCHEZ, aka

Oscar Sanchez Cisneros and the unknown individual entered the said cage to take money;

thereafier the said Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual left

together; the said Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ CISNEROS and the unknown individual
acting in concert throughout the commission of the said crime.
COUNT 34 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 3, 2000, then an_d there wilfully, unlawfuily, and feloniously take
personal property, to-wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of KYLE
RUEGG, or in her presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the
consent and against the will of the said KYLE RUEGG, said Defendant using a deadly weapon,
to-wit: fircarms, during the commission of said crime; the said Defendant, OSCAR SANCHEZ
CISNEROS and the unknown individual aiding or abetting each other through counsel and

-15- r:\wrbocswmewmm.wwh
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-While he; the saig defendant, was being held by the Clark Counly Detention Ceater on Felon Y

charges, to-wit- Conspiracy to Commit Robbery And/or Murder, Burglary While ig Posse
of a Fircarm, Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weanon

$510n

cell window ang using said tool to chisci a hole in the window,

STEWART L.BEIL
DISTR]QT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

B@ JMW
SIS Ty Roger =L

Chief D uty Districi Attorey
Nevada ?ar #002781

DA%!:*G?.‘SS‘SA/%)’I(
LVMPD RV #980 200888;9906280741;
99101 10682;0003030900' 000607201 0;

30517; 0006090878 0006030517
0206032216 b1 EV#00.4373
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e STEWARTL. BELL SHIRLEY 3. PARRAGUIRBE, L ERK
<, 2 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 8Y_, 7289 .3
- Nevada Bar #000477 ’ >
2 3 § 200 South Third Street DOROTHY { DEMOTY
g Las chas, NV 89155-2211 KELLY
e 4 § (702) 435-4711 o
[ Attorney for Plaintiff
e 5 ’ DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
6
7 | THE STATE OF NEVADA,
8 Plaintiff, CASE NO: C178954
DEPT NO: v
9 -V§-
10 § MATTHEW SCOTT FRENN,
#1692905
il
12 Defendant. ;
13 GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT
i4 i I hereby agree to plead guilty to: COUNTS 1 & 2 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER
15 | WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - 200.010, 200.030, 193.165), as more
16 i fully alleged in the chargin g document attached hereto as Exhibit *1*
17 My decision to plead guilty is based upen the pica agreement in this case which is as
18 {| follows:;
i9 The State and Defendant stipulate to four (4) coﬁsecutive sentences of Life Without
g:_ﬁ the Possibility of Parole.
385
w = 2 CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA
b - T
’T; = ?z I understand that by pleading guilty 1 admit the facts which support all the elements of
2z2=20, .. iy
=z g 2(? | the otiense(s) to which I now plead as set forth in Exhibit "1
8% | I understand that as a consequence of my plea of guilty the Court must sentence me to
25 || imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison as to each Count for Life Without Possibility of
26 || Parole; or Life With Possibility of Parole with eligibility for parole beginning at 20 yrs (240
27 " months); or a definite term of 50 yrs (600 months) with eligibility for parole beginning at 20
28 | yrs (240 months). 1 understand that the law requires me to pay an Administrative

PAWPDOCSUND'OUTLY ING\LHIVIKI 29101 doe

AA01413
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Assessment Fee.

I understand that, if appropriate, I will be ordered to make restitution to the victim of
the offense(s) to which I am pleading guilty and to the victim of any related offense which is
being dismissed or not prosecuted pursuant to this agreement. | will also be ordered 1o
reimburse the State of Nevada for any expenses related to my extradition, if any.

I understand that { am'e igible for probation for the offense to which I am pleading

guilty. T understan

reltl iiiky

s otherwise provided by statute, the question of whether |

receive probation is in the discretion of the sentencing judge.

I understand that if more than one sentence of imprisonment is imposed and |

" eligible to serve the sentences concurrently, the sentencing judge has the discretion to order

the sentences served concurrently or consecutively.

I also understand that information regarding charges not filed, dismissed charges, or

charges to be dismissed pursuant to this agreement may be considered by the judge at

nt
be determine

that my sentence is t

/ the Court within the limits prescribed by statute.
! understand that if my attomey or the State of Nevada or both recommend any

H entencing.
ﬂ I have not been promised or guaranteed any particular sentence by anyone. 1 know
n specific punishment to the Court, the Court is not obligated to acce

[ understand that if the State of Nevada has agreed to recommend or stipulate a
particular sentence or has agreed not to present argument regarding the sentence, or agreed
not to oppose a particular sentence, such agreement is contingent upon my appearance in

court on the initial sentencing date (and any subsequent dates if the sentencing is continued).

I understand that if 1 fajl 1o appear for the scheduled sentencing daie or | commit a new

criminal offense prior to sentencing the State of Nevada would regain the full right to argue
for any lawful sentenc

o
VWAL W,

I understand if the offense(s) to which | am pleading guilty to was committed while I
was incarcerated on another charge or while I was on probation or parole that I am not

eligible for credit for time served toward the instant offense(s).

_ 3 AA01414
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[ understand that as a consequence of my plea of guilty, if | am not a citizen of the
United States, 1 may, in addition to other consequences provided for by federal law, be
removed, deported, excluded from entry into the United States or denied naturalization.

I understand that the Division of Parole and Probation will prepare a report for the
€ prior to sentencing. This report will include matters relevant to the issue¢ of

sentencing, including my criminal history. This report may contain hearsay information

regarding my background and

y. My atiomey and 1 will each have the
opportunity to comment on the information contained in the report at the time of sentencing.
Unless the District Attorney has specifically agreed otherwise, then the Distri

-v, !-ll & lllh

may also comment on this report,

WAIVER OF RIGHTS
By entering my plea of guilty, I understand that | am waiving and forever giving up

the following rights and privileges:

t. The constitutional privilege against self-incrimination, including the right to refuse
to testify at trial, in which event the prosecution would not be allowed to comment to the

jury about my refusal to testi fy.

2. The constitutional right to a speedy and public trial ¥y an umpartial jury, free of

excessive pretrial publicity prejudicial to the def; etense, at whi

N bhein L
N

T
iUl 1

wouid be entitled to the

assistance of an attomey, either appointed or retained. At tial the State would bear the
burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt each element of the offense char ged.

3. The constitutional right to confront and Cross-examine any witnesses who would
testify against me.

The constitutional right to subpoena witnesses to testify on my behalf.

4
5. The constitutional right to testify in my own defense.
6

The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an attorney, ecither

appointed or retained, unless the appeal is based upon reasonable constitutional jurisdictional
or other grounds that challenge th

£ l...-
i b" 0ne i i

egality of the proceedings and except as otherwise

provided in subsection 3 of NRS 174.035,

— AA01415
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L 1 VOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA
E 2 I have discussed the elements of all of the original charge(s) against me with my
g 3 | attomey and [ understand the nature of the charge(s) against me.
E 4 I understand that the State would have to prove each element of the charge(s) against
S 3 | me at trial.
6 [ have discussed with my attomey any possible defenses, defense strategies and
7 | circumstances which might be in my favor.
8 All of the foregoing elements, consequences, nghts, and waiver of nights have been
9 || thoroughly explained to me by my attorney. |
10 I believe that pleading guilty and accepting this plea bargain is in my best interest,
11 |l and that a trial would be contrary to my best interest.
12 I am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my attorney, and | am
13 1§ not acting under duress or coercion or by virtue of any promises of feniency, except for those
14 | set forth in this agrecment.
15 [ am not now under the influence of any intoxicating liquor, a controlied substance or
16 8 other drug which would in any manner mpair my ability to comprehend or understand this
17 || agreement or the proceedings surrounding my eniry of this plea.
18 My attomey has answered all my questions regarding this guilty plea agreement and
13 | its consequences to my satisfaction and I am satisfied with the services provided by my
20 ¢ attorney. '6*' Loug oz
21 DATED this 35 227 day of-aweer, 2002,
22
23 Biét"c‘nw SCOTT FRENN
24
2 AGREED TO BY:
26
27 CHWART
28 Chief Deput ty District M}gmcy

Nevada Bar #000398

— _ e AA01416
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL;

I, the undersigned, as the attomey for the Defendant named herein and as an officer of
urt hereby certify that:

1. Thave fully explained to the Defendant the allegations contained in the charge(s)

to which guilty pleas are being entered.

% Tha
! ha\'.rc af‘\ncanrl thoa

avised the Defendant of the penalties for each charge and the restitution

that the Defendant may be ordered to pay.

consistent wit

kjk

Rleas of guilty offered by the Defendant pursuant to this agreement are
the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the Defendan

.
ook W2l LAY 4 A W Lliks uul\-llual“.

4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the Defendant:

competent and understands the charges and the consequences of pleading

{u [T o Y

a, I
guilty as provided in this agreement.

Bui

. Executed this agreement and wili enter ail guilty pleas pursuant hereto
voluntarily,

¢. Was not under the influence of intoxicating li uor, a controlled substance or
othc:;1 c%ru at the time [ consulted with the defendant as certified in paragraphs
I and 2 above.

Dated: This _/ day of Gessbar, 2002 _— /

Ln

— S AA01417
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STEWART L. BELL
2|| DISTRICT ATTORNEY Gr i7 .,
Nevada Bar #000477 AR A T sz fis
3§ 200 S. Third Street OR,G]NA[ e 0
oy o yde 89158 TG e
4 - Al
Attorney for Plaintiff Cleag &7
°
6
71 DISTRICT COURT
8 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9
10§ THE STATE OF NEVADA,
11 Plaintiff,
121 -vs- Case No, C178954
Dept. No. IV
138 MATHEW SCOTT FRENN,
| #1692905
i4
15 Defendani(s).
' INDICTMENT
16 J
17
STATE OF NEVADA }
18 o sS
. COUNTY OF CLARK )
1
20 The Defendant(s) above named, MATHEW SCOTT FRENN, accused by the Clark
21 § County Grand Jury of the crime of MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
22§ (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200 -030, 193.165), committed at and within the County of Clark, State

|| of Nevada, on or between June 1, 2001 and July 15, 2001, as follows:

COUNT

did then and there wiifuily, untawfully, feloniously, and without authority of law, and

26 with malice aforethought, kil DOROTHY JACKSON, a human being, in the foliowing manner,
to wit; bV st:nkmsz the aaid DOROTHVY 1A QAN -6~

SV SRS LONoRNT £23 E JANCANOUIN E00

e head and/or body with a bludgeon
device cons:stmg of a hammer and/or a wooden stick and/or an unknown object and/or did stab

f ek W N

EXHIBIT © —’f g

AA01418
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at and into the body of DOROTHY JACKSON with a knife, the said actions of the Defendant
resulting in the death of the said DOROTHY JACKSON; the Defendant being responsible
under one or more of the following principles of c¢riminal hiability, to-wit: (1) by having

premeditation and deliberation in its commission: and/or (2) the killing occurring duning the

petration or attempted perpetration of tobbery; and/or (3) by the said Defendant cngaging

in a course of conduct whereby the killing occurred during the commission of an ualawful act,

it-

life of a human being, or was

[,

which, in its consequences, natnrally tended troy the
committed in the prosecution of felonious intent, by the said Defendant committing a battery
and/or battery with a deadly weapon upon the body of the said DOROTHY JACKSON ca
the death of the said DOROTHY JACKSON,

COUNT [j - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

us.ﬂg

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without auihon'ty of law, and
with malice aforethought, kill LEE J ACKSON, a human being, in the following mananer, to wit;

a-...1
L1

g

L,'lrn.'

y striking i E JACKSON about the head and/or body with a bludgecn device

consisting of a hammer and/or a wooden stick and/or an unknown object and/or did stab at and

into the body of LEE JACKSON with a knife, the said actions of the Defendant resulting in the

death of the said LEE J'ACKSON; the Defendant being responsible under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liabi lity, 10-wit: (1) by having premeditation and deliber
in its commission, and/or (2) the killing occurring during the perpetration or attempted
perpetration of robbcry, and/or (3) by the said Defendant engaging in a course of conduct

whereby the killing occurred during the commission of an unlawfusl act, which, i its
I

lf!f

/"
i
17
7
174

S : AA01419
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14

conscquences, naturally tended to destroy the life of a human being, or was commined in the
prosecution of felonious intent, by the said Defendant committing 2 battery and/or battery with

deadly weapon upon the body of the said LEE JACKSON causing the death of the said LEE

JACKSON. - i
DATED this !/.!2 Z day of Ociober, 2001,

STEWARTL. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

sk IOl Qb2

DAV ), KUGER

Chief Dtg:uty District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781

ENDORSEMENT: A True Bill

) o

--vu

Forepet7b Clark County Grand Jury

i
"
7
/"
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Names of witnesses testifying before the Grand Jury:
REXENE WORRELL, 1704 PINTO LANE, LV, NV
ALICE MACEQ, HENDERSON POLICE DEPT/CRIME SCENE ANALYST
KELLY JACKSON, C/O DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
RONE JACKSON, C/O DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
DET. LOUIS MARTINEZ, SAN ANTONIO POLICE DEPT., SAN ANTONIO, TX

Additional witnesses known to the District Attorney at the filing of the Indictment:

TENILLE SCHNEPP, 13 BOOK WAGON ST., HENDERSON, NV
BRIAN SCHNEPP, 13 BOOK WAGON ST., HENDERSON, NV
JUDE TOMALON, 9 BOOK WAGON ST, HENDERSON, NV
ARCENIA TOMALON, 9 BOOK WAGON ST., HENDERSON, NV

. » —

DONNA LUCERO, 16 BOOK WAGON ST. , HENDERSON, NV

HAPUT, 12 BOOK WAGON ST, HE}-.“DERSON, NV

MAIDA KAHAI 10 BOOK WAGON ST., HENDERSON, NV
JOE KAHAI, 10 BOOK WAGON ST., HENDERSON, NV
DONNA MARTIN, 1101 SUNSET RD., HENDERSON. NV
OFFICER D. CICCONE, HPD #1005

OFFICER E. BUCK, HPD #1015

R. WORKMAN, HPD #1014

M. MATTA, HPD #1046

D. JONES, HPD #265

G. SMITH, HPD #27

L. GIBSON, HPD #323
G. COLLINS, HPD #324
H. MANCILLAS, HPD #361

AA01421
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T. WELLMAN, HPD #381
J. BROOKS, HPD #607
B. FLATT, HPD #680

K. SIMPSON, HPD #689

D. HAMPTON, HPD #793

S. DAVIS, LVMPD #4923

00BGJ112X/01FH1293X
HENDERSON PD EV# 0118034
MURDER WDW - F

d°
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Sl T GRamL
5 e
2 1} JOCP
t':; STEWART L. BELL
- 2 | DISTRICT ATTORNEY
l:' Nevada Bar #000477 .
G 3 | 200 S. Third Street N T N
3 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 S
~] 4 &02) 455-4711
s s ttomey for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
6 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7
8 | THE STATE OF NEVADA, 3
9 intiff
10 ~vs- ' Case No. C144577
Dept. No. X1
111 JEREMY STROHMEYER, Docket R
#1507326
1 E
13 Defendant.
i4 3
15 - JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (PLEA)
16 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of September, 1998, the Defendant JEREMY
17 ¢ STROHMEYER, appeared before the Court herein with his counsel and entered a plea of guilty
18l to the crime(s) of COUNT I - FIRST DEGREE MURDER (Felony); COUNT U - FIRST
19 § DEGREE KIDNAPPING (Felony); COUNT IH - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR
20 | UNDER SIXTEEN-YEARS OF AGE WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODJLY HARM (Felony);
21§ COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER SIXTEEN YEARS OF AGE
22 § (Felony), commiited on the 25th day of May, 1997, in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030,
23 § 200.310, 200.320, 200364, 200.366, 0.060 and -
24 WHEREAS, thereafter on the 14th day of October, 1998, the Defendant being present
251 in court with his counsel RICHARD WRIGHT, ESQ. and LESLIE ABRAMSON, ESQ,, and
26 § STEWART BELL, District Attorney, and WILLIAM T, KOOT, Chief Deputy District Attorney,
27 § also being present; the above entitled Court did adjudge the Defendant guilty thereof by reason
28 } of his plea of guilty and, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, sentenced
E-054 ' ——
nnv 06 1938 AA01424 i
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Defendant to the Nevada Department of Prisons as follows:

COUNT | - FIRST DEGREE MURDER: LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF
PAROLE and pay restitution in the amount of $9,422.00 and extradition costs in the amount of
$629.12;

COUNT H - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING: LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF
PAROLE, to be served consecutive to the sentence imposed in Count I;

hﬂ'“”"ﬂ e -—a =

LCOUNL I - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER SIXTEEN YEARS QOF

tences maposea in Counts [ and 1I;
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER SCXTEEN YEARS OF

(20) years has been served, said sentence to be served consecutive to the sentences imposed in
Counts L Hand T

The Defendant will submit to a test for the purpose of detennining genetic markers and
pay a $250.00 Analysis Fee to the Clark County Clerk. Credit for time served 504 days.

THEREFORE, the Clerk of the above entitled Court is hereby directed to enter this
Judgment of Conviction as part of the record in the above entitled matter.

DATED this £ 7 " "day of October, 1998, in the City of Las Vegas, County of Clark,

State of Nevada.

Dlsmc;r/ﬁ,d‘DGE

DA#97-144577X/kih

LVMPD EV#9705350452

1° MURDER; 1° KIDNAP;

SEX ASSLT W/MINOR W/SBH
SEX ASSLT W/MINOR -

(TK7)

-2~ PAWPDOCSOUTLYINGUUDG\GS7GO21901, WPD
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STEWART L. BELL 0 R l G l N AL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477
%OG% Ihm:ll\I Street " FILED IN OPEN COURT
as Vegas, Nevada 89155 '
QOZ) 4354711 | ;Q%Vm% 5 19_6@
ttomey for Plaintiff L TA BOWMAN, CLERK
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA SUE DEATKDeputy
THE STATE OF NEVADA, 3
-V5- ‘ %&se No. Ci44577X
JEREMY STROHMEYER, nggicel:m )fu
#1507326
Defendant.
GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT
I hereby agree to plead guilty to: FIRST DEGREE MURDER, FIRST DEGREE

KIDNAPING, SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER SIXTEEN YEARS OF AGE
WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM and SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER
SIXTEEN YEARS OF AGE, COUNTS I, I1, Iil and IV, as more fully alleged in the charging
document attached hereto as Exhibit "1”. - N

Other than the potential death penalty as to Count I, the Defendant agrees to stipulate to

t‘l}e vnav;munm o

|
E
[T
om
E
[173
4
=
[¢]
(4]
7.
[
=3

rwise provided by law and that ail four (4) sentences shall run

4(g)(1), shall be Life Without the Possibility of Parole.

The sentence for Count II, First Degree Kidna

Degree Kidnaping, pursuant to NRS 200.320(1)(a), shall
be Life Without the Possibility of Parole, to run consecutive to the sentence umposed for Count
L

AL X BN
g

AA01427
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The sentence for Count III, Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Sixteen Years of Age
With Substantial Bodily Harm, pursuant to NRS 200.366(2)(a)(1), shall be Life Without the
Possibility of Parole, to run consecutive to the sentences imposed for Counts I and II.

The sentence for Count IV, Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Sixteen Years of Age,
pursuant to NRS 200.366(3)(g)(1), shall be Life With the Possibility of Parole after a minimum
of Twenty (20) years served, to run consecutive to the sentences imposed for Counts I 1 and
HI.

Notwithstanding the theoretical parole eligibility as to Count TV, I understand that due
to the sentences to be imposed for Counts I, 1T and II, 1 shall never be eligible for parole.

The State agrees to withdraw the Notice of Intent to Seek Death.

waives any and all opportunity in the future to litigate or relitigate, any and all legal and factual
issues raised prior to his plea of guilty.
CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA

T understand that by pleading guilty the State can prove beyond a reasonable doubt the

facts which support all the elements of the offense(s) to which I now plead as set forth in Exhibit
H 1 (1} .

Iunderstand that as a consequence of my pleas of guilty the Court shall sentence me to .

imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for Life Without the Possibility of Parole as to Count '
L, First Degree Murder; imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for Life-Without the Possibility
of Parole as to Count II, First Degree Kidnaping; imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for

Life Without the Possibility of Parole as to Count III, Sexual Assault With a Minor Under

Sixteen Years of Age with Substantial Bodily Harm, and imprisonment in the Nevada State

Prison for Life With the Possibility of Parole with parol‘ eligibility beginning at TWENTY (20)
years as to Count IV, Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Sixteen Years of Age, all counts to

run consecutively, Iund

Fee.

[understand that, if appropriate, | will be ordered to make restitution to the victi

2
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offense(s) to which I am pleading guilty.

Tunderstand that I am not eligible for probation for the offenses to which I am pleading
| wity-

1 understand that the sentencing judge wall order the sentences imposed as to each of the
four (4) counts in the Indictment to be served consecutively.

I understand that the Court has agreed to impose the sentences set forth in this agreement.

e Al

150 understand if, at any time, this plea agreement is set aside or its resultant

convictions are set aside, for any reason, the State reserves the right to reinstate the notice to
seek the death penalty in any subsequent proceedings

I understand that the Division of Parole and Probation will prepare a report for the
sentencing judge prior to sentencing. This report will include matters relevant to the issue of
sentencing, including my criminal history. This report may contain hearsay information
regarding my background and crirunal history. My attorney and I will each bave the
opportunity to comment on the information contained in the report at the time of sentencing,
The District Attorney may also comment on this report.

‘ WAIVER OF RIGHTS

By entering my plea of guilty, I understand that I am waiving and forever giving up the

following rights and privileges:

1. The constitutional privilege against self-incrimination, including the right to refuse to

&

trial, in which event the prosecution would not be allowed tg comment to the Jury

about my refusal to testify
2. The constitutional right to a speedy and public trial by an impartial jury, free o

of proving beyond a reasonable doubt each element of the offense charged.

3. The constitutional right to confront and cross-examine any witnesses who would
testify against me.

4. The constitutional right to subpoena witnesses to testify on my behalf.

23

AA01429
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5. The constitutional right to testify in my own defense.

6. The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an attorney, either appointed
or retained, unless the appeal is based upon reasonable constitutional jurisdictional or other
grounds that challenge the legality of the proceedings.

YOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA

I have discussed the elements of all of the original charge(s) against me with my attorneys
and I understand the nature of the charge(s) against me.

I understand that the State would have to prove each element of the charge(s) against me

t trial
at giat,

I have discussed with my attorneys any possible defenses, defense stratcglcs and
circumstances which might be in my favor.

All of the foregoing elements, consequences, rights, and waiver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attomeys.

I believe that pleading guilty pursuant hereto is in my best interest, and that a trial would
be contrary to my best interest.

I am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my attorneys, and I am |
not acting under duress or coercion or by virtue of any promises of leniency, except for those |
set forth in this agreement.

I am not now under the influence of any intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or
other drug which wauid in any manner impair my ability to comprehend or understand this

agreement or the proceedings surrounding my entry of this plea.

My attorneys have answered all my questions regarding this guiity plea agreement and
its consequences to my satisfaction and I am satisfied with the services provided by my

AA01430
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1 P hercby acknowledge that the transcript of the confession attached hereto is a true and
accurate transcription of my confession to Detective Phil Ramos given May 29, 1997, beginning

2
3 || at approximately 2:20 am. in the offices of the Long Beach Police Department.
4 ﬂ DATED this g?ﬁ day of September, 1998.

5
6

REMY STRO R

P N YN
peiengant

e |

AGREED TQ BY:

/
10 %C/@”/

District Attome
118 STEWARTL. BFLL

AA01431
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL:

I, the undersngncd, as the attorney for the Defendant named herein and as an officer of

by s
the CG{B’* "Gftu;’ cemny tnat!

1. 1have fully explained to the Defendant the allegations contained in the charge(s) to
which guilty pleas are being entered.

2. 1 have advised the Defendant of the penalties for each charge and the restitution that
the Defendant may be ordered to pay.

3. All pleas of guilty offered by the Defendant pursuant to this agreement are ¢ isten
with the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the Defendant.

-

4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the Defendant:

a ) P

a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of pleading

guilty as provided in this agreement.

b. Executed this agreement and will enter all guilty pleas pursuant hereto
voluntarily.

¢. Was not under the influence of intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or

other drug at the time I consulted with the defendant as certified in paragraphs i
and 2 above.

Dated: This SZ h day of September, 1998.

& YTV Y

ATT NEY FOR DEpENDANT

7,

ATTORNEY FOR DEFEND

~

= — —tr———

i:\mvu\strohmey\gpa\rmf
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IND riL ot
AL -
DISTRICT A -
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Attomey for Plaintiff CLERK
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ;
Plaintiff, -
Vs | % gasc I\;Io- C144577
i. .
JEREMY STROHMEYER, Donter -
#¥507326 i
Defendant(s).
g INDICTMENT

STATE OF NEVADA
S.
COUNTY OF CLARK  }°

The Defendant(s) above named, JEREMY STROHMEYER, accused by the Clark County

Grand Jury of the crimes of MURDER (OPEN MURDER) (Feloany - NRS 200.010, 200.030);
FIRSTDEGREE KIDNAPING (Felony - NRS 200,310, 200.320);

and SEXUAL ASSAULT

feloniously, withour authority of law, and with premeditation

and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, kill SHERRICE IVERSON, a human being, by

fation or suffocation; said killing being deliberate and premeditated and/or

perpetated by means of child abuse and/or being commined during the perpetration or attempied

perpetration of kidnapi

E"I I coviim | mmmm 1

13, StXUai assauit and/or sexual abuse of a child.
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COUNT I] - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPING

did wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of las
away or kidnap SHERRICE IVERSON, a micor, with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine
said SHERRICE IVERSON from her parents, guardians, or other person or p

lawful custody of said minor, or with the intent 10 hold said minor to unlawful service, or

perpetrate upon the person of said minor, any unlawful act, to-wit: murder and/or sexual ass

sault
and/or inflicting substantial bodily harm.

COUNTIII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER SIXTEEN YEARS OF AGE

T DIATVET LT 4 T
WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject

SI—IERRICE IVERSON, a female child under sixteen years of age, to sexual penetration, to—wn
cil °1ta1 penetration, by inserting his finger into the vagina of the said SHERRICE IVERSON

against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the

said SHERRICE IVERSON was mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding

Al TY
the nature of

Defendant's conduct; the defendant’s conduct resuling in extreme trauma and

substantial bodily injury, to-wit: bruising and tearing to the vaginal area.
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH

SHERRICE I'V'E.RSON, a fernale child under sixzccn years of age, 10 sexual penemration, to-wit:
penile penetration, by inserting his penis mto the vagina of the said SHERRICE IVERSON,

agamst her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
it

i
n
i
/i
11
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the nature of Defendant's conduct.
. f
DATED this _3/" day of July, 1997.

,/

o {

said SHERRICE IVERSON was mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding

STEWART L. BELL

NICTRIOT A TTANADRDNDWY
LAV LI L AL INININE T

Nevada Bar #000477

Foreperson, CIZVCCMMY Grand Jury S
" Names of witnesses testifying before the Grand Jury:

Daniel Eitnier, Primm Vailey Resorts, Director of Corporate Security

David Thomas Cash, Jr.

Giles Sheldon Green, M.D.

Leroy Iverson

Agnes Lee

Aleana Garcia

Tenisa Cotrell

Phillip Ramos, LVMPD T —
97AGI041 X/9TFGO219K s

LVMPD 970525-0452
MURD.; 1° KIDNAP .
SA V/16 -F
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Hi, this is Phil Ramos. I'm going 16 be doing a voluntary statement under event number
970525-0452. Subject is going to be murder. Division

5/25/97, appraximately 0500 hours.,

Uh, please use the rights ferm on this statement, Person giving this statement last name is
Strohmeyer - STROMMEYER. First name is Jeremy - JEREMY. Middle name is Joseph. He is a white
male adult, DOB 14/11/78, 5'8, 160, and his social is 602-26-5849.

His home address is 311 Silvera - SILVERA Avenue in Long Beach, California. Date and time of the
interview is going to be 5/29/67, 220 hours. Interview is taking ptace in the offices of the
Long Beach, California Police Depaniment. Conducting the

interview is Det. P. Ramos, Also present is Sergeant Wail Turley - TURLEY of the Long Beach Police
Pepartment and Detective Bill Collette - COLLETTE of the Long Beach Police Depariment.

Jererny, | wanna start Bis interview off by asking you if you know it's being recorded.

Yes | do.
Okey, And is this, is this being recorded with your permission?
Yesitis

Alright, Before we get started  any funther, | heed to advise you of your rights. And | know that you've

been advised of your nghis earlier. !5 that right?

That's comrect.

Okay. So i'm gonna read you your rights one more lime, okay?

- - - .
Okay, you have the right to remain sitent. if you give up the right to remain silent, anything you
say can and will be used against youin a courtof law.  You have the right 1o an attorney and to
have an attomey present during any questioning. If you so desire an attomey and cannot

afford one, an attormey will be  appointed to you by the courts,
guestioning. if you decide to
stop during any of the questioning, you can do so  without any problems ar any

continuation. !f you wanna stop, we'll just stop, okay?

at no cost to you, pricr {0 any

Alright.

Oo you understand those rights?
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t understand those rights.

Alsight.  And with those rights in mind, do you wanna continue tatking to me?

X
Yes ldo.

Ckay. Uhm, as you know, the reason we're here, I'm from the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Cepartment and we're investigating an incident that  occurred at the Primadonna

Hotel a couple days ago. And we understand that you might be invalved in that and that you have
some information for us. s that rAight?

That's corredt.

Okay. Well you wanna just'tell me what happened?

Ah, where shouid | start?

Weil, lel's just start at the  beginning. How did you get to, uh, Stateline?

| drove out with my friend, uh, David Cash and his tather, David Cash, Sr.

Mrnhuh.

Ah, driving to Las Vegas, we stopped at Stateline and, uhm... stopped at that casino, uhm,
‘cause, uh, David's dad wanted lo play poker and we were gonna go, on the, uh, rolier coaster at
Wiid Bill's. So, uh, we got out and parked the carin front of, uh, that one casing,

Whiskey Pete’s?

Nao. T
Primadonna?

Primadonna.

Ckay.

And, uh, we went inside, uh, with Dave’s father, ‘cause he wanted to get change so he could give

us some money. And he gave us some money, we left and we walked across the street to Witd
Bil's and we were looking for the entrance 1o the, uh... roller coaster. And
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Let me stop you for just second, ckay? What ime and what day was that?
We amived a littie bit before 12, on, on Saturday.

Ckay.

Night, going on to Sunday moming.

OKay, sa that was midnight?

-
1
i

Okay. Alright, go ahead.

And so we were, wa walked across Wild Bill's, uh, looking for the entrance to the roller
coaster, couldn't find it, so we walked back to, uh, the Primadonna and then, uh, in the
Primadenna we were looking for, uh, the arcade and at first we

couldn't find it because, ah, iast time Dave had been there, it had been in a certain place and | guess
they were remodeling or something —

Mmhuh.

So we copldn't find it, so we went up the, uh, floor and, uh, we were goin' around, doin’ the
stot machines and got some beers and drinkin' some beers and did some walkin® around and,

uh, | think cne of the guys stopped us and asked David for 1.D., did't ask me for 1.D.
though.

Ckay. How old are you?

Eighteen. - i - r——
Alright. And teli me how you were able to tuy beer?

| walked up and ordered it

Okay. Nobody asked you for your 1.D. or anything?

| think out of, ah, say five purchases, one time one guy asked me for 1.OD.

Okay. And did you show him your 1.D.7

AA01438
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Yes.

And -

il £

i, ihave an i.0. from ancther  country that | used to five in, it's & fake 1.D.
Okay.
iW's for like 22 years old, makes me 22,

Okay. Alright, go ahead.

5o, uh... uh, we were just goin'  around doin’ some slot machines and, uh, drinkin’ some beer
and, uh, we also, we went on the, uh, the tram, or whatever that is, o Whiskey Pete's.

Mmhuh.

O R Ty Y

donna. And whien we got 10 Whiskey Peie’s, there wasn'i really anything there
that interested us and we didn't see anything in the arcade or anything, 5o we came back
to the Primadonna and, uh, we went down and checked out the arcade and played some video

games and then met, uh, two differant girfls. The first ore was an Asian girl we met—

- [= L T
- ll'c!ll ule F FHVbaUd

Mmhuh.

And we were talking to her, but  her mom came down and, uh, left and she left with her mom. And
then we met another gid, a, uh, a Mexican gal and, uh, we were talkin' 1o her some and that's, uh,
when, uh, the one girl, uh,

the deceased gir was, uh, running around, uh, with a, ubh, Mexican boy about the same age.

And they were like, like throwin', uhm.. like big wads at each other, you know, paper

= - - - © o ———

toweis bunched up with water and stuff, and throwin' stu#f around. And, uh, like | got hit by cne,
so |, | threw it back and | started messin' around with 'em and, uh, } was chasin' the girl
around and she, uh, san in the, uh, the gid's bathroom and |,

uh, | followed her in and, uh, when we got inside, she, uh, picked up, uhm, a sign, you know,

when you put it on the fioor —
Mmhubh.
— for a wet fioor?

Mmhuh.
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She picked that up and, uh, uh, swungit at me and | blocked it with my foreamm and, uh, and  then |,
|, like when she did that, | reacted and | grabbed her and like 'd put my hand over her  mouth
and, uh, like |, | grabbed

her, uhm, underneath the left arm and put my left hand over her mouth and then, uh, like
grabbed through her leg, under her crotch with the right hand and, uh... and then I, uh, | took her

o [ P Sy o
into the, uh, the stall, the, uh, the biggest stall, the handicapped siall and, uh,

took off her, uh, her, boots and ker, uh, panis and her underwear and, ub... keep her guiet,
I, uh, choked her, started choking her... then, ub, during  that time, |, uh, touched, uh,

Al b L

touched her vagina with my

finger, inserted my, uh, index  finger inside, a the way to the knuckie and moved it in ang out

quite a few times. And, uh, also touched the, uh, head of my penis to her vagina, inside her lips, it
wasn't really any, uh,

penetration with it. And, ub...} was choking her to keep her quiet and i had her, she was laying
on the loilet seat, with her head to the side of where you fush the toilet. And, uh, i was
choking her, 1 proceeded to choke her and the, uh,

two Mexican girls, uh, walked in the bathroom and, uh-- ... so | sat on top of the gil and, uh, made
it seem like there was a person in there using the rp:trnnm And uh inthat

[ oS UWaSs Faaii iR E SR, wATD,

. H H lits
with me, uh, started to make 2, a wheezing noise, uh, like

uh, Hike uh, | used, uh, cne

Mexican giris were in the bathroom, uh, the one girl that I'd
a

of my hands and §, | put it over her throat, stopped the, th, wheezing until the, uh, Mexican girs
left the bathroom. And... uh_.. after that, i... | decided that | had o leave. Actually, before that, |
was sitting on the girl and | was, uh, uh, stroking my

penis, uh... | was trying to get it hard and the, uh, Mexican girls came in and, and then | stopped and,
and afier they lefi{ wanted, | just wanted taleave. And, uh, ! noticed that the gid.was still
breathing, barely and | didnt  wanna leave her that

way, 50 |, ub, | fried to break her neck ... so that, uh, she wouid die quickly, 'cause | knew that based

on the amount that t had choked her, that she had a lotta loss of oxygen to the brain,
probably jotta brain dead.

§ think you told us, when we me,fe H

20 mmulea all togelhe: right

:"

| said fifieen,
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Fifeen minules?
Yeah, 15, 20 minutes.

Tell me, uhm, why you thought  that these two gifls that came m while this was going on were
Mexican giris.

*Cause | could teli by the accent.

Ckay. And with what, uh, like a Hispanic accent?

Yes.

Okay, let's go back a little bit, ah, to when you guys first got there. You said you had bought sorme

beers. Uhm..., before this, before you'd gone into the bathroom, how many beers had you
had?

{ don't, probably 2 or 3.

Two or three?

Before | went into the bathroom  with the giri?

Mmhuh,

jhad a whiske;agd coke, probably four or five beers.

Okay. Tell me if you think that you were under the influence of alcohol then,

Ah... that's areasonable  assumption, yeah, | would say | was under the influence of
alcchoi.

Alright, so would you iet's say on a scale of one to ten, ten bemg stupid, faliing down drunk, what
would you say you were?

idsayiwasaboutabara?.
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Okay. So you had a pretty good —
I'd— yeah, | had a good buzz. | was feelin’ pretty good,
Okay. Had you eaten anything? Something o eat while you got there, after you got there?

Uh..during the day |, probably 1 had a ... some eggs inthe morning, that morning, Salu;day
MOming.

Mmhuh.

And, uh, and Saturday night 1 had a hamburger and some fries in a small tawn, uh, on th
Stateline. Ang —

-~ I'm somy, go ahead.
That's it, go ahead.

i : A emi i med b EVaae ko
Okay. So did you eat anything  after ¥yOu guys got to Siaietine?

=9
']
+
¥
3

Na, | don't think so, no.

Alright. Uhm, you told me you  went there with a friend of yours?

Yes.
And his father.
Yes. - —

What was your friend's name?

David Cash.

And his father, David Cash, Sr.
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TURLEY:

Comect.
Okay. Was David with you when all this was goin' on?

No, he, uhm... when | first went in the bathroom, he, he like  followed in, not like all the way, he

went to the door and he was at the doorway and, uh, when | grabbed the git, he, he was like, "What
are you deinv?” and then

just, he left, freaked out, He was afraid | was gonna do somethin’ stupid.

Okay, when he first, when David first saw you in ihe bathroom,  what part of the bathroom were
you in?

twas in the main area, by the  sinks.

Okay. And there was nobody eise in the bathroom, just the two of you?

No, no one else in the bathroom, just us.

Okay.

That would be three of you, right, not twa?

Af the point in time when David was-

VWhen, when David came in.

-in the doarway. Yeah.

So there was atotal of ;ou, David and the fittie girl: ——
Right. Butthen he, he, after I grabbed her, he said, “What are you doinRg?” and left.

Ckay, Uhm...

Phii, you know, if | may, if | may just ‘cause from what, uh... Jeremy had told us a iittie bit
earlier. You had talked to a Hispanic girl who was her, who you believed to be her younger
brother was playing with the victim.

Right. And-
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TURLEY:

0

But hear my question first. The reason why I'm askingis  because you, you desciibe her reaily
good, you gave, you told  her you were from Long Beach, if you remember what you, is that what

you said?
Yeah, i told her | was from Long Beach, | showed her my nippie rings. Yes.

Yeah, And you showed her your things. | think that's reaity implortant that you, you give Phil that
information, 'cause it, it, you know, it tells more

Tell, tell me aboul the Hispanic girt that you were taiking to after the Asian girl.

Uhm, an Hispanic girl, she's probably about 5'6 and, uh, and a ltlle, litle obese, not, not fat but
she's a littie bit big,

Okay. What color hair did she  have?

Black hair.

Ba you remember her name?
No i den't,

Ckay.

-

I think | recali the, uh, Asian’s gifi's name as being Erica, but | don't recail the, uh, the Mexican gifl's
name.

Okay, so you told the Mexican  girl that you were from Long Beach?

Yeah, | justwem Op and start  talking 1o her, you know, struck up a conversamormand it came up
where we were from. Toid her we were from, uh, Southem California,

Where was this at, when you first siruck up the

%]

onversation with her?
in the arcade.
Down in the arcade?

Right.
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Alright. And you mentioned just @ few seconds ago that you had showed her your rings?

Righl. And so we were talking  and, uh, she, uk, | think she said something about my tongue ring,
se |, uh, proceeded to show her my nipple rings aisa.

Ckay. S0 you have your nipples pierced?

That's correct
Okay. And you showed those to her? To this Mexican gitd?
Yes.

Alright And how long did you  tafk to her?
That's tough. 'd say 5t0 10 minutes. It wasn't a long conversation.
Okay. And did you, did you end the conversation or did she end the sonversation?

You know, 'm not really sure. | think it was kind'a like a, you  know, both of us were just
standing there, not saying anything, so we both just like  walked away.

Okay, Tell me about how much time you spent over at Whiskey Pete's, before you tock the tram
over to Primadonna.

.

_ Shoot |, | don't remember.

Okay. Did you play any games in that arcade?
.1 ihink we went  ih and it was like we wereé  ufimpressed, so we just went  back.
= - — - -

Okay. Uhm, there was an  incident that you told me about, where your friend, David, had  gotten,
uh, carded by a secunty guy and had his beer taken away?

Yes.

Where was that ai?

That was in the, uh, the, uh, Madonna oRe.

AA01445
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The Primadonna?
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The Primadonna, yeah.
Okay.’And would that have been just a litie while after you took the tram over?

No, that was when we first, no, it's like, you know, our first couple of beers. | believe.

Ckay.

So- think that was before. Because whal we did is we got some beers and some- alright. He got
his taken away. The guy didn't say anything to me.

Okay.

And $0 i finished mine, Then | went back and got two more for us and we drank em’ on the way 1o the
tram. You know, we finished ‘em waiting for the tram to show up.

Ckay. So that particular incident, when David had the beers laken away -

Right.

How much langer after that did you guys get to the, ub, Primadonna Arcade downstairs?
! don't kqu.

Okay.

LUhm, | don't remember the time.

Ckay. Do you zemember goin' to Buffalo Bilt's with bim?

Yeah, |-} said that. And when we first got there to the Primadonna, we got-uh, David's father gave

[=H o [ | T R — gy
us some money and we walked across the street to Wild Bill's and, uh, we walked around like

haifway around the whole complex tooking for the uh, the entrance lo get on the, uh, rolier
coaster.

Right.

And when we couldn't find it, we just like went inside, walked around inside, then walked out the
front.
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Okay.' Tell me when was the very first time that you noticed the little girl-the fittle black gid.

tihm, that's tough to say. Uhm-
Had you seen her when you were over at Buffalo Bill's?
No. First ime 1 saw her was in, uh, in the Arcade at, ub, Primadonna.

Okay.

That was the only time | saw her.

- So estimate for me, uhm, the perdod of ime when you first saw her entil you chased her into the

bathroom, or followed her into the bathroom,

i'd say a goad half hour,

Okay. So you didn't interact with her for a very long time, just maybe about half an hour?

Yeah, it wasn't-
Okay.

- wasn a ong time,

Okay. So, uh, when you first saw her, she was throwin' the spitballs with the- with the little
Mexican boy that she was playin' with?

Right.

= - — ¢ e——

Okay. And that littte Mexican boy tumed out to be the fittle brother of the Mexican girl you were
taikin' to?

Yeah, that was- | assusmed that. That was my assumption because, uh, the gir's older
brother was with the Mexican girl also. | believed that it was her younger brother.

Okay. The little black gin?

Yeah. This is confusing.

AA01448
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Yeah. tmkind confused so -
The littte biack girl had an older trother.
Right

And the older brother was with the, uh, Mexican girl.

Okay.

That | had talked te and | had showed my nipple rings to.

Uhm-hmm,

And | saw them pretty much together, uh, everywhere in the Arcade.

And then i believe that the,
uh, fittle Mexican boy was the Mexican gir's younger brather, '

Okay. Alight, } gotcha now. So did you ever get a chance to talk to the littie black gif's older
brother?

| believe he was standing like right next to the Mexican girt while we were talking to her.

Uhm-hmm.

So-| didn't taik directly to him.

But he was there and could hear your conversation?

Yes.

—

Okay. But you never had a direct conversation with him?

No.,

Gkay. Uhm, when you were down there in the Arcade, di

d you notice any other Kids that would
have been your age down there?

When we were first there, earlier on in the evening -

vhm-hmm.
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--when we first check it out, there was like there's some older people down there. Not-no

not a lot, like
maybe cne older guy, two oider guys or-you know, with their girflfriend or somethin’. That's

uy, eng or somethiy.
about it

Okay. Do you know where David Cash, Sr. was when you guys were downsiairs in the Arcade?
Yeah. He was up at the, uh, poker tabies.
At the Primadonna?

At the Primadonna. There's- | guess there's a littie enclosed room.

Uhm-hmm,

He wa

as ther

Ckay. And...50 your friend, David, Jr., was with you downstairs in the Arcada?

Yes.
Okay. Was he talking, uh, with the littte black girl alse?

1 don't reslly, we didn't really engage in conversation with her. | mean not like standing there talking

to her. It was pretty much like, ah, playing kids games, running around chasing each other,
uh, throwing stuff at each

other. Just doing child-ish things. And David didn't really invoive himself, it was mostly me.

Okay.

it was pretty much all me.

"Cause 1 got hit by, uh, one of the things they were throwing.

Okay.

So ! threw it back and starled playing around with them.

AA01450
2IDC05756



¢® 6%

LGLGODALT TSTURAS

D

»

2

2

COLLETTE:

s that somethin’ that you would normally do? Play around with younger kids?
Ah, not really, no,
Ckay. Why do you think you did it that night?

Ah...maybe it was 'cause | was bored, maybe it was because of the alcahot, 1, | can't teally say, | dont
know,

Chay, Uhm, when you hit, when you were playin’ around, you know, with the spit wads and, and,
you know, just carrying on with her, were YOu als0 canying on with, ah, the litite Mexican boy
that she was playin® with? '

h, yeah. We were like, ub, ___like, he'd fike, he'd like, "Hurry, “iet's go get her”, you know, like,
like 1 was on his side or whatever, and then like, and, like he disappeared-

ol

Mmhuh.

Like after, ah... after the giri ran towards the bathroom. | like tumed around and he we, was gone.
Okay. Do you know where he went?
No. .

Okay, Ubm... after

you came out of the bathroom and you had laft the little black girl in there, tell me
what you did then.

Uh... | came aut of the bathroom, i walked gut of the door and then | walked to the, uh, far end of the
room, that the door opens up and than there's video games in the middle-

- ————

l wa_!ﬁed to the far end to walk around an that side and | walkad on that side, zh, right there was, uh,

the, uh, black boy, ah, the girl's older brother and the, uh, Mexican gifl. | walked right by 'em,
just waiked out of the Ascade.

Olkay.

i think when we were talking before, Jeremy, you described what the little girl was wearing and
what you did with her ciothes.

Oh the, uh, the little girl's clothes. She, the boats were- L, | remember those being like, uhm, like a,

AA01451
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TURLEY:

like almost a calico pattem, like brown/black-

Mmhuh.

-and a dark orange-ish red, kind'a mixed together. And then she had jike 3, uh, almost like stretch
Pants on, that had like over it, fike attached to the ¢

op of the pants like, uh, materal that just
hung over freely. -
Mmhuh,

-like a colored line on the end, you knaw, they're not really a..
underwear was, | dont remember that. But, uh, | had tack he
‘em in the toilet. And, uh, when | ieft the

body, I, uh, put the feet inside the igilet and, uh, s0 she was like sitting on the back edge of the
toile! seat-

. | remember, uh, what color the, uh,
r. uh, boots and her clothes and, uh, put

Mmhuh.

with her feet in the toilet and her hands on top of her legs.

Tell me why you did that,

So that, uh...t was thinking that, you know, if somebody comes in the ba

throom, they wen't see like,
you know, her legs hanging out from the bottom,

Is that why you put her clothes into the toilet?

You know, | don't— | dont really remember why | did the, put the ciothes in the toilet. |, | think it was
probably the same season. | don't reat y remember.

Mmhuh.

= - - -

- r———

Jeremy, ) think it, Phil shouid know, about the na

pkin oo, when you were sittin' on her, when the girls
came in,

Oh, uhm, aiso, uh... uh, from choking her, she had, uh, spit out a, a kind of a, a foam and with
blood, mucuys mixed with blood, you know, it was all bubbly and, uh, accidentaliy | had, uh, ! guess,
uhm, brushed my hand against it and like I'd gotien it all over my hand and s

! tack same, uh, toilet paper and cleaned it off and ! can't remember whether | put the toiiet paper
wad in the toilet or threw it on the ground,

Okay. Do you remember, vhm, if you had wiped any portion of your body with that, except for wiping

AA01452
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her with that toilet paper that you just told me about?

, 1. 1 got the mucuss on my hand—

Okay.

—rucus and blood on my hand, | used the toilet paper lo clean m;' hand off,
I see.

| didn't wipe it an her or myself, § just used R to clean my hand off.

you told me earlier thai, uhm, while this was going on, that you had, uhm, touched her with
your penis. Is that, is that accurate?

T

l"!lfaul

That's accurate, yes.

Okay. Do you remember if ¥ou got any biood on your peni.s?

Mm, no  don't ... there— there wasn'l penetration

Okay. Do you remember s.?eing her bieed at all, from her vaginal area?
Yes | do.. | remember there was blood down there.

Alrght. Do you know--

~some on my finger.

Okay, okay, thaPs what | was gonna as yau, Tid any transfer to your, to your body and YOU just said
your finger?
Yes.

Okay. Did you wipe that off?

1 would think that | probably wiped it off at the same time that | wiped the mucus off of my hang.

Okay. Uhm, 1 think you alsc told me that, ubm

t , there was a point in time there where you were sitting
¢n top of her,

AA01453
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Correct.

Okay. And you told me that you were stroking yoursef.

Yes.

Alright. And, uhm, was that in an effort ta get an erection?
Yes sir.

Okay. Were you able to achieve that?

| was halfway achieving it and the Mexican gids came into the bathroom.
And that startled you?

That stopped it,

Ckay. Uhm, | need to ask

you ane thing. Uh... while this was occurring, do you recall if you had
ejaculated at ali? '

No | did nat.

. Okay. You are ceriain that you did not?

I'm certain.

Ckay. So therwhen you lef the stall and went upsiairs, teil me what you did Hrem—

i believe | exited the casino and went and waited, ah, by the car,

Were you

ause |, i think that was where we were supposed to meet.

“Atthe car?

Yeah, fike faur o'clock or something.
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Do you remember seeing David, uhm, at the top of the stairs, when you came out?

No i dont.

Okay. Do you remember if when you came out of the Arcade

ut you went up the stairs, did you go
right to the parking fot, or did you lake your time goin

&
=4
)
=
&
=g
<
o
g
&
5
[=]
)

I don't really recall.

Ckay. Tell me what

You guys did afier, uh, you got to the car and you met up with David and his
dad.

Well actually |, | met with David and his dad wa

s slill inside. So} wailed at the car while he went
and got his dad,

Okay.

And then his, his dad and him came out and, uh, we left and we drove to Las Vegas,
What'd you do when you got to Vegas.

Uhm, uh, we parked the car in a parking lo! structure
car, ‘cause we were pretty tired and his dad went to pi
we, uh, woke up and we went and walked around and

then met with his dad like 12 o'clock and we got a hotel room at, uh, the Holiday Inn.

o b
gnd' st

nd, uh, and David and { were sieeping in the
ay some poker at 8 casino. And, uh... then

Ckay, this beeping means we're runnin' outta lape on this side, s¢ I’

m gonna turn it off for a
second and fiip it over io the other side.

AA01455
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Okay, we're continuing on Side B. Alright s about 12 o'clock you met with David's father and went
and got a room?

Right, and got a room, ah... on, ul, not the main strip,

but the, uh, enctosed street? You know what
o takkin’ about?

Youtold us the Holiday Inn.

Yeah, it was the Holiday {nn, but its on a, it's by a strip of a bunch a casinos—

Mmhuh,
Fremont, that's it.
Oh, okay, on Fremont Street?

Right. We went and got a hote!, Holiday inn, at Fre

mont and it's like a special named Holiday inn,
like it was taken over by ancther company.

Okay.

But, uh, we got a room there and, uh, Jike slept a couple hours during the day, then got up, went out
and, uh, chacked out alf the different casinas and went gambling in some of 'em. And, un,

stayed, stayed in Las Vegas tii Monday. Uh, we drove down to the main strip at about 12
o'clock On Monday and the traffic

was prelty bad, so we decided 1o stay on the strip Yil like 6 o'clock—

Mmhuh,

So, uh, David and | went off and we, uh, checked out like the Luxor and, uh, uh, MGM and New
York-New York, all the different hotels there.and the casinos and, uh, and then-we-left at six

and we were driving and then we got, we got fo Stateline prefty fast, like I'd say about 40
minutes and then about ten miles past that and just

*

hit like deadlock traffic. So we got off at Barstow and tock in a movie at like ten o'clock and left again
atlike 12:30 from Barstow and went about 7 miles, no traffic and then, uh, came over 3 ridge,

thare's traffic again. And, uh, finally got home to Long Beach at, uh, 3 am, Monday moming. That's
when they dropped me off at home.

Monday morning or Monday night/Tuesday morning?

uesday moming, sormy.

AA01456
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COLLETTE:

Okay. That's all right. Uhm, tefl me when you told David about what happened.

Uhm... | didn't really, uhm, discuss it with him. Uh... fike on the, think it was Tuesday or
Wednesday, like, {'d called hirn and | was talkin’ to him just about like school and stuff,

whatever, and, uh, he said he was ganna cali back and then i called back a iittie later, ‘cause he
wasn't cailin’ back, and his -

K

mom said he lelt and he came over my house and said, "Oh my God, you're on TV™, like this gir was
killed and ali this stuff. So then, he, he figured it cut pretty fast.

Then he told you he was gonna have o Qo 16 the police.
Yeah,
His dad insisted.

He said his dad was insisting that he would have to go 1o tell the police what he knew and he, he
himself was gonna go.and tell the police and then, you know, | said, "Weli, that's uh, if that's what
you have to do, that's what you have to de, that's fine.” You know, I'm not gonna be upset with
my fiiend for that,

Mmhuh.

8o, uh... he went io his, think his mom and dad taiked io the poiice.
And that was few hours ago. s that right?

A littte more that few hours ago~

Yeah, a while ago. -

~7, 8 hours ago.

Okay. So—

—— (Both speaking at once)

-ah, are you tellin’ me that David didn't know anything about what happened that night?

Like, like | said, when he, uh, was at the bathroom door, he saw me grab the girl.

AA01457
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Right.

And that's when he said like, "What are you doing?™ and just left.

Okay. But afterwasds, afler, ah, you had come out of the stail and you ran into him in the
parking tot, you didin't tell fem what happened? . .

i don't know, | might've, | don't know.

Okay.

| don't think so, because | remember, or when he came over my house, he was like totaly
fike surprised.

When was the first time you saw any kind of media coverage about what happened?

When David came over. | think that was Tuesday night.

| read the papers, but, ah, not on a daily basis.

Well, do you watch the news on TV?

. Ah, yes, sometimes. | really, | really don't watch TV that much at all. | don't watch TV that much,

i do read the paper sometimes. But, uh, after Dave came over and showed me that, §, |
was watchin’ the news 1o see, ah, what, uh, what would develop, uh, you know, what ieads
they were getting and everything. Ang j also had picked up the paper today, as a

matter of fact, rfad an article in there. Los Angeles Times.
Did you see, ah, the video, the surveillance on the TV?

Yes | did, multiple times.

Okay. Did any other of your friends call you and tel! that they'd seen you on TV?

AA01458
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Ah...not then, one of my friends called me and said he saw me. And, uh, then some other people,

some friends at school were like, "What were you doin’ on TV last night or this moming?" So yeah,

pecpie noliced, they recognized me.

Did you tell anybody about what happened?
Ah, yeah, | told a old girfriend of mine.

Do you wanna tell me her name?

Not really, no.

Okay.

| think you already know it though, 50 —

Well | think you atready know that i talked to her and | know her name.

You talked, yeah,

8o you might as well tell him,

Agnes. ~

Agnes?

You want the fuill rame?

Sure. ) B
Agnes Lee.

Okay. Tell me what Agne’s reaction was when you told her.

She didn't believe me.

Okay.

AA01459
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. Okay,

She didn't wanna believe me.

‘Cause j wanted to confide in somebody and ! wanted to, | don't know. | was considering
leaving, ah, trying to get cut of the country and if | did that, | would'a wanted her to ge with me,

[

Mrrthuh.

And, uh... |, she had, you know, we had been going out for a while and she had told me

stories before, about how she used to know people in like, uh, certain like, uh, you know, gang
extensions, gang affiliations and, uh, s0 | expected her to like have, | don't know, dealed with
somethin' like that before, like, a, a mutder or something and, uh,

she might, you know, help me out and, uh, you know, give me some advice an what { should do,
And, uh, tumed out that ali the stuff she had told me was just bulishit, 5o it kind'a fike rattled
her pretty good. :

Mmhuh. Uhm... you have a computer at home?

t A
Yes | do.

Are yau familiar with America on Line and the Intemet and all that?

Yes.
Okay. Did you talk to anybody on iine about what happened?

No. | hadnt been, ah, hadn't been on fine since before | left for Las Vegés from up here, My
parents, uh, took my modem away, 50 | had not been on line.

= - —a

But there are, uh, uh, people, I'd say a maximum of seven people T've met on fine who know that |

have my tongue and my nipples pierced.

Okay.

So 1 mean some people could, you know, draw conclusions just based on that,

Wouid you like 1o tel) me what your on line address is?

AA01460
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A

Uh, sure, Fiy Boy 1030.
Fly Boy 10307
That's comrect.

And is it just the way it sounds? The way it's speited?

eah. Fly, uh, capital F, Boy, capital B, no spaces in between. And then, uh, 1930, no spaces.
Ckay. Uhm...did you see the coverage of the little girf's father on TV?

Uhm...no, | didn't see any of the coverage on TV. | saw the brother speaking on TV-

Mmhuh

About how, uh, they didn't want the, he didn't want the media, ah, harassing his dad and putting him

down. And, uh, | read an article teday, well yesterday, in, uh, the Los Angeles Times about,
r

uh, uh, like the father and they said they had a source in Las vegas, that, uR, had heard iike,

hiad gotten the father saying that,

uh, to keep, vh... for there not to be any trouble, that the hatel would, uh, have to give him a six pack
of beer, a hundred dollars and, uh, round trip tickets o Las Vegas and pay for his daughters
funeral.

Whatd you think about that?

| thought it was pretty sad.

VA A

Ty ? = —

it's his daughter. It's, it's his daughter and she was murdered and ha's thinking about a six pack
of beer and some hundred dollars in playing chips

David, you said if. uh, it was some good that came oWt of this, can you tell Phil?7

Uh, yeah. Uh..ubm, fjust, i, | was sayin' that | notice also in the article how a majority of it was
taiking about how, ah, parents need to keep more careful waich over their children, they can' just, uh,
leave 'em in, ah, in Arcades, while they're up in the casino—

Mmhuh,
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--like upstairs. And | think that this, based on how wide the media coverage has been, is
be a big eye opener for a lotta parents and they're not gonne be leaving their kid

s
al gonne e leaving their kids alo

Tell me what you thought about ali those littie kids down there at 3:30, 4 o'clock in the moming.

| thought it was pretty ridicuious that kids would be up at that time. | mean didnt, when | was a kid,
Fd wanna, you know, stay up late or whatever, you know—

Mmhuh,

~at the, I'm sure when | was 2 little kid, it'd be cooi to be up a3t 3:30 in the morning, in the
Arcade. But!mean just runnin’ around rampant, there's like no supervision whatcnayer

FORSESr TaweL R O IG T,

like, it's, it's an area that's campletely unsupervised and there's no adults asound, it's just
bunch a little kids hangin' out.

meanit's
a

Uhm, you know a lotta times in our investigations

Wi ey
GO =

we come across situations and we give them
names, like, uh, crimes of circumstance, crimes of passicn, ah... spontanequs crifnes,

pre-planned incidents and stuff iike that. Tell me what you wauld, ah, classify this particular
incident as.

Vd have to say it'd be spentaneous.
Spontaneous?

Yeah, =

Okay. You didn't plan on doin’ this at all, when you got there?
Definitely not, no.

Okay. And yo; hadn't planned on doing this when you first started playin’ around with the littje
gin?

No. Not even,

Do you have any idea what actuaily compelled you to do this?

| don't know. | was sayin’ earlier it's Jike #'s, it's like, it just like something like went haywire or
something, | don't know. It's like, like when she swung that thing at me, like | don't know, like |
suddenly like reacted. And fike it was just, it was just a completely strange experience, | mean

T PR

iHE, i's hard forme to
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explain, | can't say. It, it wasn't like fun, & wasn't, uh, iike a rush, it was just...it's strange, hard to

explain. | don't know what triggered it. Like | think her sw, like swinging that thing at me, | guess
that's what triggered it when [ grabbed her and was |

HYW gy .
Erigghi e 7 R

as just Kke from there it went on.
Teli me if you think that there would've been anything that could've stopped you from dain’ this.
Yeah, lots of things.

Give me an example.

Ah, for ohe, a parent bein' around their child when they're there. You know, not let, leaving your

children slone. Uh, having signs posted saying you are under surveillance. That's, that's
a preity big detesrent.

1 think you told us you hadnt seen the cameras -

Yeeh, | didnt, | didn't see the camera. Ah, 1 had, | had seen two cameras in big white boxes and
that's it. | didn't see any camera up by the bathrooms.

Ckay. But nowyouk

10w that, that you were caught on surveillance tape.
Yes, | know that.

And you saw that from the TV coverage and people telli’ you?

That's correct

Okay.

AA01463
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Whyn't you tell him about your blue Bruins baseball cap and your clothing, and what you did with
all that stuff.

Uhm, today !, | panicked today, because, uh. | didn't know what to do. ¥'m, 'm looking at
spending a good amount of time, a good periad of time of my life in jail now. 5o | was thirking about

taking off and gettin' rid of any evidence | might have, or whainot. So |, uf, | bumed, uh, the

cap that | was wearin’ that night and, uh, the shorts that | was weafin' that night.

What kind'a cap was that?

it was a, uh, a U.C.LA. Bruins like basebali cap.

What color was it?
W's & blue cap with the yeliow B.

Okay, Uhm, so on the front of the cap there's the B?

Correct.

And then an the surveillance 1ape, | saw some writing on the side of the cap.

a

i believe it says, uhm, like go, ge Bruin something, above the, uh, hole on the back of the cap.

Uins,

Okay. And tell me about the shirt you were wearing that night,

A blue shirt and it's like uh, just like tee shirt, it's, uhm, kind'a dark

think same circie designs on it. It's just pretty much a lee shin wi
front.

navy biue and it had like un, |
th some designs on it, on the

And whatd you do with that shin?
It's athome.
s at home?

Yeah, | don't, | don't remember wi

hether | packed it or, ah, ifit's in My roam or if s in the
laundry room,

oim, a green backpack he has, or a big black bag that he has.

AA01464
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TURLEY:

TURLEY:

A

TURLEY:

The, uh, the shoes are in the backpack.

The gray

18 tennis shoes,
Right. And the boxers are in the, uh, the biack bag.
Is that the kind'a shoes YOu were wealing, were gray Vans?

Yeaah, those wese the shoes |

LT

tn

E
T

L7
3
]
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3

Okay.

But he says the maid was there today and they may have washed all those items.

Adl ¢, | believe all the ciothes had been washed.

No, | don't ming. That's fine,

Uh, Jeremy, the only thing that { have that, that ! wanna, | think is important that Phi knows,
because it's, ! want our, ours to be pr

elty much the same. Do you beilong to any gangs or
anything right now?

Na.

You're not a white supreme-ist?

No, definetely not.

You indicate

d to me that you didn't attack this girl because she was black,

That's comect. | gig nat attack her because she was black.

Okay. Also, you toid, you told me that, uhm, you hadn't followed her around or anything else 1o
see her locations and that, that you had been in the A

fcade for a while, in fact, YOu even yrinated in the
Ascade itself, by the Helicop. Is that —

AA01465
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TURLEY:

TURLEY:

TURLEY:

That's comect.
Tell me about that.

Urinated twice.

The ime if 0300, | just tumed to Side B. ‘

In the Arcade.

Twice in the Arcade, uhm, there was this spot, ah, there's a row of video games against the wall, going
towards, uh, the, uh, !adies’ bathroom and, uh, on the wall there's a, a like a socket, plug

socket. Ah, urinated afl over that. And, uh, and then there's a helicopter game like, uh,

iike right across ffrom that, urinated inside that.

Ckay. You also, uhm, told me earlier and | think it's important here to tel) Phit oo, that,
uhm...afler you had, uhm, choked her from, from the front and, uhm, you had sat on her and
you heard her kind of, ah, still maybe possibly breathe, there was some life in her, uhm, that
you had, vhm, you ’ ’

wanied to basically, you didn't want her to be

mn Lsmo
A IR -1 e wo O VR

'@ rest of your life, so you, you locked
there and you thought about how to do it and you, you remember recalling about some
maovies of something?

Yeah,
Could you teil Phil about that?

Uhm, before | left, uh, and she was still breathing, not, not, not strong breathing, but, you know a
wheezy breathing, uh, very labofed, and, uh, |, ), | thought about it and |, and I thought to myself

that | couldn't ieave her there like that, because i couldn’t leave then and | figured that she would
be a vegetable,

-————

because of, uh, lack of oxygen to the brain, so, uh... | tried to, ub, break her neck. Uh, and doing it

how I'd seen in movies before, uh, putting one hand on the back of the head and ope hand under the
chin and, uh, twisting, uh, the head to twist the nack, that ub, breaks it. And when | did that, uh, |
heard a, a, a toud snap, but,

ah, she was still breathing so, uh, ) did it one more time, as hard as | could and, and she
siopped breathing,

Okay, Jeremy, at that time, you know, after you choked her, you know, and you didn't want herto be g
vegelable, when you decided to break her neck, was i, was it then you say, hey, I'm gonna

T YT,

ETE

ner out of her misery and you were gonna kill her?
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Yeah.
I mean, did you actually say that lo yourself, o did you have that idea, gr—7
Well, my thought was that that would be iike the quickest, easiest thing, Uhm, least painful way.

£y

Mmhuh.

Just, you know, end if. So that's what | did.
Okay. Uhm, can | ask you one question?

Sure.

Cid you, when she was, uh, having this labore
little Lit of CPR yourself, and then take off?

[+%
I
b=
10
»
7
“ J

No, the thought never cross my mind.

Okay.,

Uhm, ane othar thina tan

Fymypry

% ONS gLier ing 100, You, you, you told, uhm, us eariier, or at teast clarity, when you had your
penis out and you were, she was seated up against the toilet, that, uhm, she wasn't
conscioug at this tima, What, | mean is that, is that the case? is that, was she, was she
screaming? Were you holding her into it, or, or what? Was she noi—

She was not conscious.

Okay.,

She was breathing, but she was nat conscious.
Okay. Well how do you know she was breathing? Could you see

| couid hear her breathing and | could see her chest moving up and down.

Oh, you could?

-
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COLLETTE:

COLLETTE:

Al

COLLETTE:

Okay. And, uhm.. were her eyes open of closed al that time?
I dont, | don't think | really jocked at her eyes.

Okay.

You know, | don't recall really locking at her face at all,

Boyoure ber anyone, when you were in the stall, in the handicapped stall, when this was

memb
all gaing on, do you remember anyone saying anything to you, or coming over the top of the stall, or
under the stalf, or apening the door of the stall iseif, not just the bathyoom?

No, I would've noticed that | think,

Well Phil, | don't have anything more,

Okay.

Thank you. Would you teil

=
v
o
o
qE
¥
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-

ih, 35,

3.57 And do ycd recall | handed you, a uh, consent to search form, to search areas of, uh, the home
you live in, from which you have control?

And you read the whole thing out loud to us,

That's comect.~ - ) .

and, vh, you signed it and agreed to let officers fram o
Department check for your clothing?

That's correct.

. one quick thing, i, if | could relay something to the father from you, what would it be?
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We therefore deem it impermissible under the United States and Nevada
Constitations to base ap aggravating circumstance in g capital prosecution on
the felony upon which a felony murder is predicated.

McConnell, 102 P.3d at 624 (emphasis added).

The McConnell coust clarified its ruling:

I]n cases where the State bases a first-degree murder conviction in whole or part on
elony murder, to seek g death sentence the State will have to prove ap aggravator
other than one based on the felony murder's predicate felony.

McConnell, 102 P.3d at 624,

Concerning this clarification, the McConnell court went one step further and cautioned the

during "an indivisible course of conduct having one prncipal criminal purpose” and
using one to establish felony murder and another to support an aggravating
circumstance,

McConnell, 102 P.3d at 624-25.

Thus, under the authority of McConnell, the first aggravator found in thig case, that the

murder occurred in the commission of or an altempt to commit robbery, is unconstitutional, and

therefore invalid.

1I. The McConpell Decision is Applied Retroactivelx.

In Bejarang v, State, 122 Nev. Adv. No. 82, 146 P.3d 265 (2006), the Court rejected all the

i

State’s arguments that the McConnell decision should not be applied retroactively, concluding:
Absent retroactive application of this rule, there would he "3 significant risk that
a defendant . . . faces a punishment that the law cannot impose.”" Thus we

conclude that McConnell announced a substantive rule of law that must be applied
retroactively.

Bejarano, 146 P.3d at 274 (emphasis added), see also Rippo v. State, 122 Nev. — > 146 P.3d 279,
282-283 (2006).

Iy
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III.  The Proper Remedy for a McConnell Exror is a New Penalty Phase Hearing.
It is not proper for any court in this State to engage in a reweighing analysis of aggravating
and mitigating circumstances in order to find an element of capital eligibility, pursuant to the U.S,

Supreme Court’s decisions in Ringv. Arizona, 536 1).8. 584 (2002) and Apprend: v, New Jersey,
530 U.S. 466 (2000).

The fundamenta} principle of Ring and Apprendi is that the defendant has a “ri ghtto “a jury

determination that (he] is guilty of every element of the crime with which he is charped

T3

reasonable doubt.’ Ring, 536 at 602, quoting United States v. Gaudin, 515 U S. 506, 510 (1995).

u
L

%
]
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7, Apprendi, 530 U S, at 477,

However, it is anticipated that the State wil| argue the authority of Clemons v. Mississippi,
494 1).8. 738, 746-750 (1990), in which the Court then (17 years ago) found that an appellate court
could uphold a death sentence by reweighing aggravating and miti gating evidence and, in essence,
perform the sentencing caleulus itself, It is argued by Vanisi that even though the Court has not yet

specifically overruled Clemons, the reasonin gin Clemons cannot survive under the now-controlling

decisions of Ring and Apprendi.

aggravating factors that were required for death eli gibility, but in Ring it recognized “that Walion
and Apprendi are irreconcilable; our Sixth Amendment jurisprudence cannot be home to both.” 536
U.S. at 609, For exactly the same reasons, Clemons and Apprendi “are irrcconcilable,” and the
court’s “Sixth Amendment jurisprudence cannot be home to both.”

/17
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Analysis of Clemons shows that it is based upon exactly the same theories that the Court
relied upon in Walton but disavowed in Ring and Apprendi. In Clemons, the Court reasoned:

Any argument that the Constitution requires that a jury impose the
sentence of death or make the findings prerequisite to imposition of
such a sentence has been soundly rejected by prior decisions of this
Court. Cabanav. Bullock, 474 U.S, 376, 106 S.Ct. 689, 88 L.Ed.2d
704 (1986), held that an appellate court can make the findings
required by Enmund v. Florida, 458 U.S. 782, 102 S.Ct. 3368, 73
L.Ed.2d 1140 (1982), in the first instance and stated that “[t)he
deciston whether a particular punishment - - even the death penalty -
- IS appropriate in any given case is not one that we have ever
required to be made by a jury.” 474 U8, at 385, 106 8.Ct., at 696. .

Likewise, the Sixth Amendment does not require that a jury specify
the aggravating factors that petmit the imposition of capital
punishment, Hildwin v, Florida, 490 U.S. 638, 109 S.Ct. 2055, 104
L.Ed.2d 728 (1989), nor does it re uire jury sentencing, even where
the sentence tums on specific findings’ of fact. McMillan v,

Pennsylvania, 477U.S. 79,93, 106 S.Ct. 341 1,91 1. Ed.2d 67 (1986).
Clemons, 494 U S. at 745-746 {emphasis suppiied). This was the same analysis the Couri relied on
in Walton to uphold the Arizona sentencing scheme which allowed the trial Judge to find the

aggravating factors necessary to find eligibilit y Ior the death penalty. In Walton, the Court relied

substantially and explicitly on Clemons in uphelding the Arizona scheme. Walton, 497 U.S. at 647-

........... iaa

649 (quoting Clemons). Indeed, the entire discussion of the Sixth Amendment issue in Walton

repeats the analysis in Clemons, including its rejection of the argument that the Sixth Amendment

requires jury findings of factors necessary for death eligibility; its approval of Hildwin v. Florida,

490 U.S. 638 (1989), and other Florida cases, upholding judge sentencing without jury findings of
aggravating factors; and its reliance on Cabana v. Bullock, 474 U.S. 376 (1986), hoiding that an

appellate court, rather than a jury, could make the findings necessary for death ehgibility under
Enmund v, Florida, 458 U.S, 782 (1982). Walton, 497 U.S. at 647-649.

In Ring, the Court overruled Walton. The Ring Court concluded that Walton and its reliance

on the decisions in Hildwin, Cabana, and Enmund, could not be reconciled with Apprendi. Ring,

536 U.S. at 598-599. As explained in Ring, the fundamental defect with the Walton analysis was

its reliance on the distinction between elements of an offense and sentencing factors.
Iy
Iy
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% 1 Lting the Apprend; rule that ihe Sixth Amendment requires a jury determination of every
o 2 f element of the offense, the Ring Court reasoneg:
I_!-
W) 3 That right attacheq ot only to Apprendi’s Weapons offense byg also
= 10 the “hate crie™ ABgravating circumstance, Ney ersey, the Court
&) 4 observed ¢ threatened Apprendi with certain pains if he unlawfui]
o possessed 5 weapon and with additiona} pains if he selected his
= 5 victims with 3 'TPOse to intimidate them, because of thejr race.”
o oprendi, 530 U8 af 476,120 S.C1. 2348, “Merely using the fabe]
o0 6 ‘sentence Cnhancement’ 1 describe the [second actf surely does not
provide a principled basis for treating [the two acts] differently.” big.
7
The dispositive question, we said, “is one not of form, but of effect.”
8 id., at 494, 3¢ S.Ct. 2348, If , State makes an Increase in g
clendant’s authorized punishment contingent on the finding of a
9 fact, that fact - - ng Matter how the State labels it - - must he found by
a jury beyond 4 reasonable doyuht See id., at 482-483, 120 S.Ct
10 2348 A defendant may not be “expose[d] - 10 @ penalty exceedin
the maximum he would receive if punished according to the facts
i1 reflected in the Jury verdict alone.” 'Id & 483, 120 S (¢ 2348; see
also id. at 499, 120 S.Ct. 2348 (SCALIA, 1, concurring)(“[A}} the
12 acts which must exist i order to subject the defendant to 3 legally
prescribed punishment must be found by the | ury.”),
13
Ring, 536 U.S. at 602,
14
The Court then rcasoned that the distinction drawn between elements of ap offense and
15
sentencing factors in the Arizona capital semtencing scheme relied upon i Apprendi to distinguish
16
Walton, was “untenable,” because “Apprendi Tepeatedly instrucis in that context that the
17
characterization of afactor Circumstance as an ‘element’ ora Sentencing factor’ is pet determinative
18 :
of the question ‘who decides,’ judge or Juy.” 536 U at 604-605. The Court concludeq that
19
“Walton... cannot Survive the réasoning of Apprend;.” Id. at 603 Because Arizona § enumerated
20
aggravating factors Operate as ‘the functiona) ¢quivalent of ap clement of greater offense,
21 '
Apprendi 530 U.s. at494 n 15, 1208.Ct. 2348, the Sixth Amendment requires that they be found
22
by a jury.” Id. at 609.
23
The Clemons decision was baged on the same distinction between Sentencing factors and
24
elements of the offense that the Court rejected in Apprend;, Ring, and subsequent cases. See
25
Cunningham v, California, - US. ___ 127sct 856, 868-871 (2007); United States v. Booker,
26
543U.8.220,231-233 (2005); Blakely v, Washington, 547 U.S.296, 304-305 (2004); see Apprendi,
27
530U.8. at 485-487 and n. 13 (Iimiting decision in McMijlan v. Penns Ivania, 477 U g 79, 86-88,
8 eeRlal Y. rennsylvania
6
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93 (1986), relied on in Hildwin, 490 U.S. at 640).

The Ring Court also rejected the state’s argument that the Court’s Eighth Amendment

jurisprudence permits judicial factfinding:

The notion “that the Eighth Amendment’s restriction on a state
legislature’s ability to define capital crimes should be compensated
for by permitting” States more leeway under the Fifth and Sixth
Amendments in proving an aggravating fact necessary to a capital
sentence ... is without precedent in our constitutional jurisprudence.”

Ring, 536 U.S. at 606, quoting Apprendi, 530 U.S. at 539 (O’Connor, 1., dissenting). It similarly
rejected the argument that judicial factfinding might be a better way of guarding against arbitrary
imposition of death sentences: “The Sixth Amendment ri ght to jury trial, however, does not turn on
the relative rationality, fairness, or efficiency of potential factfinders.” Ring, 536 U.S. a1 607. The
analysis in Clemons relied on Eighth Amendment jurisprudence as ensuring against arbitrary

ati. P

1alty, even when the factual findings necessary for death eligibility were

ImanIhnp

AAARRIUASILINSEL

made by trial or appellate courts. Clemons, 494 U.S. at 748-781. The Ring decision made it clear

that this analysis is simply irrelevant to the Sixth Amendment’s requirement of Jury factfinding of
all the elements of capital eligibility. See also Ring, 536 U S. at 612 (Scalia, J., concurring),

In short, if we remove from the Clemons decision the parts of the Walton analysis which the

Court rejected in Ring, there is nothing left; and the conclusion that Walton cannot survive Apprendi
compels the same conclusion with respect to Clemons. Under Ring, a trial Judge cannot find
aggravating factors necessary to capital eligibility, and appellate judges certainly cannot do so: in
either case, the constitutional violation is that “the wrong entity judged the defendant guilty.” Rose

v. Clark, 478 U.S. 570, 578 (1986); Carella v. California, 491 U.S. 263, 267 (1989)(Scalia, J.

concurring in judgment); see Neder v. United States, 527 U.S. 1, 32, 34-39 (1999)(Scalia, J.

concurming and dissenting). The Nevada Supreme Court itself has recognized that Ring invalidated
Nevada’s former three-judge panel sentencing scheme, which allowed judges to find aggravating
factors in cases where the defendant pleaded guilty or the penaity jury could not reach a verdict.

Johnson v. State, 118 Nev. 787, 799-804, 59 P.3d 450 (2002).

Allowing appellate judges to make death-el; gibility findings is even worse. Unlike the trial

court, which has at least seen the trial and has a basis for evaluating the power of the testimony, an

7
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appellate court sees only a cold record; and it sentences a defendant to death without ever looking
him in the eye, without considering his demeanor, as & jury must, see Allen V. Woodford, 395 £ 34
979, 1014 (9th Cir. 2005), and without hearing “the sound of his voice.” See McGautha v.

California, 402 U S. 183,220 (1971); see also Bejarano v, State, 146 p.34 at 276 (upholding death

7

sentence by reweighing and finding, on cold record that mitigating evidence “not particularly
compelling”). In every sense, an appellate court that reweighs eligibility factors is replacing the
jury’s “highly subjective” and “moral judgment of the defendant’s desert” by “decreeing death”

itself. See Caldwelj v. Missigsippi, 472 U.S. 320,340 n. 7 (1989).

It is particularly noteworthy that the Nevada Supreme Court has declared itself incapable in
non-capital cases to act as an “appellate sentencing body.” State v, Sims, 107 Nev. 438,440, 814
P.2d 63 (1991). Accordingly, under these circumstances where the ultimate punishment of death 1s
at issue, such reweighing cannot produce a reliable sentence under the Eighth Amendment, much
less one that is consistent with the right to jury trial on all elements of capital-eligibility under the
Sixth Amendment. In any event, judgments as to the relative competence of judges or juries as
factfinders are irrelevant, see Ring, 536 U.S. at 607: the only relevant constderation is that neither

nltha

~
L) ul&r

(&
jon

this Court nor the Nevada Supreme Court is a jury, an fie therefore could constitutionally
find any element of a criminal offense. See Ring, 536 U.S. at & 12 (Scalia, J., concurring)(noting that
“decline {in belief in trial by jury] is bound to be confirmed, and indeed accelerated, by the repeated
spectacle of a man’s going to his death because a judge found that an aggravating factor existed.”

(Emphasis in ori ginal}).

point was for the Jury as a whole or for any individual juror. Accordingly, if the felonty-murder

aggravating factor in Mr. Vanisi’s case is vacated, any reweighing under Clemons, violates the Sixth

Amendment under Ring, and Apprendi.

-]
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V. Harmless Error Cannot Be Found Bevond a Reasonable Doubt.

Under Nevada law, Cvery aggravating factor adds its own wej ght to the sentencing caleulus
by encouraging the jury to find the offense “more aggravated and heinous” Homick v. State, 108

Nev. 127, 138, 825 P.2d 600 (1992). The weight to be accorded to the aggravating factors is not g
mathematical counting of factors, see Leonard v. State, 114 Nev. 1 196, 1216, 969 P.2d 288 {1999);

3 3

€very juror is entitled to give whatever weight he or she wishes to any aggravating or mitigating

circumstance; and any juror is free to refuse 1o find death eligibility, or to impose a death sentence,

no mater how greatly the aggravation outweighs the mitigation. Bennett v, State, 111 Nev. 1099,

1109-1110, 901 P.2d 676 (1995). The upshot of this system is that — even before Ring — a court

o

d only rarely (if at all) refuse to require a new penalty hearing to allow 3 jury to make a

1
COul

“reasoned, moral” choice to take the defendant’s life. California v, Brown, 479 U.S. 538, 545 (1987)
(O’Connor, 1., concurring). This is not such a case,

Further, this case resembles those in which the Supreme Court has reversed death sentences
after invalidating an aggravating factor, despite the existence of other aggravating factors., For

instance, in State v. Haberstroh, 199 Nev. | 73,184 69 P.3d 676 (2003), the Supreme Court reversed

a death sentence after invalidating a depravity aggravating factor, even though the offense itseif

41 N ¥l

involved the kidnaping, robbery, rape and strangulation of a stranger; and one of the four valid

fe

aggravating factors was an escape from federal prison in which the defendant used a knife.
Similarly, in State v. Bennett, 119 Nev. 389, 605, 81 P.3d 1 (2003), the Court reversed a death
sentence based in part on an invalid “random or motiveless” aggravating factor, where three valid
aggravating factors remained (including that the killing posed a great risk of death o more than one
person, because the perpetrators attempted to kill another individual during the robbery but only
wounded him).

Assessing the possible harmlessness of a constitutional error in the penalty phase of a capital
case 1s significantly more difficyjt than making the determination with respect to a guilt phase issue.
In the guilt phase, the jury must make a relatively simple yes-or-no determination: has every fact

niecessary to convict been proven beyond a reasonable doubt? When an error is injected into that

calculation, it can be a reasonably objective task to determine whether the evidence supporting every

9
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element is so overwhelming, or the effect of some impropriety on the Jury’s deliberations is so slight,
that the court can say confidently that the same elements would have been found regardiess of the

CEror.

The jurors’ task in the penalty phase is quite different. While they make some factual

determinations as to the existence of aggravating factors, they must make

<

an individual and personal

the mitigating evidence. F inally, the jurors must make a “reasoned moral response”, California v.

Brown, 479 U.S. at 545. (O’Connor, J., concurring), to the question whether they want to take the
defendant’s life. In making that decision, any single juror can prevent imposition of 2 death sentence
by deciding that the miti gation outweighs the aggravation, or by simply refusing to vote for death.
Under Nevada law, there is no set of ciroumstances which requires a juror to vote for death, no
matter how greatly the aggravation outweighs the mitigation (or even in the absence of any
mitigation), and eVEry juror’s right to refuse to impose a death sentence is unlimited. Bennett v,
State, 111 Nev. 1099, 1109-110, 902 P.2d 676 (1995).

Given the state of the law, it is virtually impossible for a court to guess what effect a
particular aggravating factor may have had on any juror’s decision. The robbery aggravating factor

in this case was based on the supposed motive for the murder, and its potency in the penalty and

aggravating factor adds its own weight to the eligibility and sentence calculus by making it “more

aggravated and heinous.” Homick v. State, 108 Nev. at 138. The effect of the invalid aggravating

factor thus cannot be dismissed as de minimis.

The effect of the invalid factor on what “reasoned moral response” a juror could have had
to the sentencing choice is made even more difficult, because each juror’s response is essentially
subjective. In attempting to assess what jurors might do in the absence of the error, this Court
should consider the “reasoned moral response” other juries or prosecutorial agencies have had to

¢qually or more egregious offenses. When prosecutors make the argument that a jury would

10
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necessarily have imposed a death sentence, regardless of any error, because the crime and the
defendant are so bad, it is onl Y appropriate to ask what juries and prosecutors actually do in response

to other egregious cases (although it must be 1 ecognized that, 1o ajury, every first degree murder case

will be an egregious one. See Godfrev v. Georgia, 446 U.S. 420, 428-479 (1980).)'
Examining other cases that have resulted in verdicts of, or negotiations tor, sentences less

than death shows that Mr. Vanisi’s case cannot be considered one in which a death sentence was a

asentence of death. Last week in Department 6 of this Judicial district in the case of State v. Moore,
4, life sentences were imposed on Valerie Moore in a case in which there were 12 murder
victims and the potential aggravating circumstances included factors of multiple murder, a previous
conviction of murder and murder while under a sentence of imprisonment. It is hard to conceive of
more egregious circumstances, and yet, Ms. Moore was not sentenced to death. Another case from
this County that involved the murder of on-duty police officer was that of Larry Peck who ended
the life of officer John Bohach. State v. Peck, CR01-1975. The jury in Mr, Peck’s case Imposed a
sentence less than death. The State also sought the death penalty in the case of Roger Chambers and
proved up the aggravators of a prior violent felony and that the murder involved torture. The Nevada
Supreme Court found the death penalty excessive and removed My, Chambers from death row.

Chambers v, State, 113 Ney. 974, 944 P.2d 805 (1997).

In Clark County, there are even more examples of atrocious killings in which the sentence
imposed was less than death. In the Fernando Rodriguez case, for instance, the defendant was

convicted of two counts of first degree murder. His four aggravating circumstances were two prior

Rodriguez, No. C130763, Ex. 1 (B)(12,13). By any objective criteria, Rodriguez’ offenses were more

"' This is not an attempt to conduct a proportionality review of the sentence. Rather, it is
an attempt to identify some objective basis for assessing harmlessness, by lo oking to what results

occur in other egregious cases.

11
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egregious than Mr. Vanisi’s, byt the jury in his case 1mposed sentences of life without the possibility
of parole. The only mitigating factor ctied by the jury was “mercy”. Other defendants convicted of
multipie murders have been given sentences less than death by juries, when the mitigating evidence

was 1o more compelling than what was available in Mr. Vanisi’s case (As the Nevada Supreme

3

Court observed in its review of Vanisi’s penalty phase “It is true that this case is not without

5]
-
"l

mitigating evidence, including testimony of Vanisi’s family and other cvidence indicating he has

223 LIWILRF

mental health problems.” 117 Nev. at 345). See State v. Budd, No. C193182 (three murder victims-

to more than one person and avoiding arrest; no mitigating factors cited), Ex, 1(B) (7,8); State v.

Randle, No. C121817 (two murder victims; six aggravating factors, including three priorrobbery or

attempted robbery convictions), Ex. I(B) (9-11); Staic v. Daniels, No, C1126201 (two murder
2AAC V. Daniels

victims; four aggravating factors as to cach murder), Ex, 1(B) (14,1 5); Daniels v. State, 114 Nev.

261,956 P.2d 111 (1998); State v. Ducksworth, No. C108501 (two murder victims; total of ten

aggravating factors), Ex, 1(B) (16); Ducksworth v. State, 114 Nev. 951, 966 P.2d 165 (1998);
~UekSworth v, State
Ducksworth v. State, 113 Nev. 780,942P2d 157 (1997); State v. Martin, No. C10820} (two murder

vietims; total of twelve aggravating factors), Ex. § ®B) (17,18). Most recently, a jury imposed a
Sentence less than death op a defendant who, in the course of irying to rob a cabdriver, killed the
victim by setting him on fire. State v. Scholl, No. C204775, Ex. 1 (B) (1-4). These cases show that

there is no rational basis for believing that a jury would hecessarily have imposed a deathy sente

nce

a foregone conclusion in My Vanisi’s case. In the notorious Strohmevey case, the state concluded

that the needs of public justice in the kidnaping, sexual assault, and strangulation murder of a seven

L

year-old girl would be satisfied by alife sentence, State « 7. Strohmever, No. C1445 77, Ex. 1{A)( 7,8).
In multiple murder cases, the state has alse engaged in negotiations resulting in sentences fess than
death. State v. Amistrong, No. ('] 80047 (two murder #igtims andone attempted murder), Ex, 1 (A)
(1,2); State v, Rundle. No. C189563 (two murder victims, one killed by beating with baseball bat),

12
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Ex. H(A) (3,4); State v, Erenn, No, C178954 (iwo murder victims, kijfed by stabbing and beating,

reversed on appeal, the state later agreed to life Senlences on remand. State v. Evans, No. C11] 6071,
Ex. 1(A) (9,10); Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 28 P.3d 498 (2001); Evans v. State, 112 Nev. 11 72,
926 P.2d 265 (1996).

In light of these circumstances, the State cannot argue that Mr. Vanisi’s case was so
egregious that imposition of a death sentence was a foregone Conclusion,

McConnel! error in this case cannot be found harmiesg beyond g reasonable doubt,

Finally, given the intense subjectivity of the weighing process and of the ultimate selection

ofthe penalty to be imposed, no court can adequately review Or replicate the situation of the orj ginal

sentencer, Fundamenta}ly, @ court that yp

=
n
i
=N
(4
B
3

4t sentence, in spite of the presence of
constitutional crror, under the Nevada system is essentially IMposing a new Sentence itself, whether

its analysis s called harmlesg €ITor Or reweighing, Because the Nev

that replaces the Jury’s “highly subjective” and “moral judgment of the defendani’s desert,” by

“decrc-ing death” itself. See Caldwell v. Miississi L,472U 8. 320,349 1. 7(1989); Antonin Scalia,
~SRell V. Mississippi,

God’s Justice and Qurs, 2002 First Things 123 (May 2002), 2007 WLNR 10639587, Such a

~IR4. 8 Justice and Qurg

availabic to a jury. Every member ofa Jjury can prevent imposition of 3 death sentence by finding that
the mitigation outweighs the aggravation or by concluding, on any or no ground, that he or she will

not vote for death. No court can replicate that dynamic, Nor does any court have the ability, or

01339
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California, 402 U 8. 183, 220 (1971). Unlike

send a defendant to his death without ever hearing “th

did in the Rodriguez case. No Court, reviewing a cold record, can consider a defendant’s demeanor,
which ajury can consider in a penalty hearing, Eg | Allen v. Woodford, 395 F 34 979, 1014 (%9th Cir.
2005); see Riggins v. Nevada, 504 1.8, 127,137-138 (i 992). No such reviewing court has to look

a defendant in the eye while imposing a sentence, as a jury must; and such a court would necessartly

s voice.” See McGautha v,
wicautha v,

-
[4:3
[¥a]
s

5
fa
o
L

2

4 new sentencing jury, such a court does not know

about, and does not consider, a defendant’s good behavior during post-conviction incarceration,

¥

which must be considered as mitigation. Skipper v. South Carolina, 476 1J.S. 1,6-8 (1986).

While the Supreme Court has in general tolerated the use of harmless error analysis or

reweighing to uphold death sentences, Clemons v. Mississippi, 494 U S, 738,74¢ 1990), prior to the

decision in Ring v. Anizona, 536 U.S. 584 (200

~

on his will alone, for the tenure of their offices” w.

Colonial Background, 124 UPalL. Rev. 1104, 111

2), the intensively subjective structure of the Nevada

sentencing scheme is antithetical to Judicial reweighing or 1o aggressive harmless error analysis,
Finally, the members of the Nevada Judiciary are popularly elected, and thus face the possibility of
removal if they make 3 controversial and unpopuiar decisioﬂ. This situation renders the Nevada
judiciary insufficiently impartial under the federal due process clause to preside over a capital case,
At the time of the adoption of the constitution, which is the benchmark for the protection afforded

by the due process clause, see, e.g. Medina v. California, 505 U

8. 437
judges qualified to preside in capital cases had tenure during good behavior.?

, 445-447 (1992), English

2 'The tenure of judges during good behavior was firmly established by the time of the adoption:
almost a hundred years before the adoption, a provision required that “Judges” Commissions be made

Quamdiu se bene gessering . . . ” was considered sufficiently important to be ncluded in the Act of

» Select Charters 531 (5th ed. 1884); and in 1760, a

siatute ensured their tenyre despite the death of the sovereign, which had formerly voided their
commissions. 1 Geo. HI ¢.23 i 1 W. Holdsworth, History of English Law 195 (7th ed., A. Goodhart and
H. Hanbury rev. 1956). Blackstono quoted the view of George II1, in urging the adoption of this Statute,
that the independent tenure of the judges was “essential to the impartial administration of Justice; as one
of the best securities of the rights and liberties of his subjects; and as most conducive to the honour of the
crown.” 1 W. Blackstone, Commentaries on the Laws of England *258 (1 765). The framers of the
constitution, who inciyded the protection of tenure during good beh

I of the Constitution, would not likely have taken a looser view of the importance of this requirement to
due process than George IHl. In fact, the grievance that the king had made the colopial “judges dependent

avior for federai Judges under Article

as one of the reasons assigned as iustification for the

revolution. Declaration of Independence § 11 (1776); see Smith, An Inde endent Judiciary: The

2-1152 (1976). At the time of the adoption

no provisions for judicial elections in any of the states. Id. at 1153-1155.

14
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The absence of any such protection for Nevada judges results in a denial of federal due
process in capital cases, because the possibility of removal, and at minimum of a financially draining
campaign, for making an unpopular decision, are threats that “offer a possibie temptation to the
average [person] as a judge ... not to hold the balance nice, clear and true between the state and the

[capitally] accuscd.” Twmey v. Ohio, 273 US. 510, 532 (1927); see Legislative Commission’s

Subcommittee to Study the Death Penalty and Related DNA Testing, Ass. Conc. Res. No. 3 {file No.
7, Statutes of Nevada 2001 Special Session), meeting of February 21, 2002, partial verbatim

transcript (testimony of Rose, J., noting that lesson of clection campaign, invojvin g allegation that

Justice of Supreme Court “wanted to give reliefto a murderer and rapist,” was “not lost on the Judges

in th

Fal ¥ R
ik L1y 1

Nevada, and T have often heard it said by judges, ‘a judge never lost his job by being

=
14

tough on crime.’”); Beets v. State, 107 Nev. 957, 976, 821 P.2d 1044 (1991} (Young, J., dissenting)

("Nevada has a system of ¢lected judges. If recent campaigns are an indication, any laxity toward a
defendant in a homicide case would be a serious, if not fatal, campaign liability.”)

Considering all of these factors, it is clear that any death sentence imposed in Mr. Vanisi®s
case cannot be constitutionally reliable under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments, unless it is
imposed by a fully informed and properly instructed jury. Accordingly, the death sentence must be

iiik-

vacated and a new penalty phase ordered.

WHEREFORE, based on the foregoing peints and authorities, Petitioner Vanisi respectfully
requests that this Court grant him relief regarding the issue presented in Claim Two, based upon the

presence of the invalid McConnell aggravator, and the retroactive application of the McConnell

decision through the Bejarano decision;
Iy

iy

Hf
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urt find that the proper remedy for the erroris a new penalty hearing;
and, regardless of and in addition to any other relief which is merited, this Court order a new penalty

phase hearing for Mr. Vanisi.

DATED this Z& day of MM , 2007,

SCOTT EDWARDS, ESQ THOMAST. QU ALLS, ESQ
State Bar No. 3400 State Bar No. 8623
729 Evans Ave. 216 East Liberty St
Reno, Nevada 895372 Reno, Nevada §9501
{775) 786-4300 (775) 333-6633
Attorney for Petitioner, Attorney for Petitioner,
Siaosi Vanisi Staosi Vanisi
16
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AFFIRMATION

The undersigned hereby Affirms that the preceding document does NOT contain the social

securify numbcr(s) of any person(s).

U L f
DATED this & " dayof _t ""V*-V1 5449

S { —

THOMAS L. QUALLS, ESQ
State Bar No. 8623

216 East Liberty St.

Reno, Nevada 89501

(775) 333-6633

Attorney for Petitioner,
Siaosi Vanisi

17
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Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am

L. Qualls, and that on this date, I served the foregoing Memorandum

Error on the party(ies) set forth below by:

an employee of the law offices of Thomas

/% flacing an original Or true copy there
collecting and mailing in the United States
prepaid, following ordinary business practi

}( Personal delivery.
Facsimile (FAX).
Federal Express or other ovemight delivery.
Reno/Carson Messenger service.

addressed as follows:

Terry McCarthy
Appellate Deputy District Attorney
50 W. Liberty St., #300

P.O. Box 30083
Reno, Nevada 89520

Nevada Attorney General
100 N’ Cﬂrcnr\ L —

LAl DLLCTL

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717

DATED this_ 9} R day of _ \Mere A

of in 4 sealed en

of Law Regarding McConnelt

velope placed for

mail, at Reno, Nevada, postage

CEs.

18
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% EXHIBIT 1
t"l. 27 A. Non-jury sentences
I_!-
& 3] AL Stale v, Richard trong, No. C180047, Judgment of Conviction (Plea of
! Guilty}(October 23, 2003).
! g
o A2.  Statev. Richard Awmstrong, No. C180047 Guilty Plea Agreement (August 29, 2003,
o5
E A3, Sumtev. William Rundie No Ci89563, Judgment of Conwction(Scptember 16, 2003)
6
Ad.  Statev. William Rundle, No. ¢} 89563, Guilty Plea Agreement {May 21, 2003)
7
A5, Statev. Jose Vv igoa, No. C168652, Guilty Piea Agreement (June 24, 2002)
8
Ab6.  Statev. Matthew Frenn, No. C178954, Guilty Plea Agreement (November 6, 2002)
9 .
A7 Statev deremy Strohmever No. C144577, Judgment of Conviction (Plea)}{November s,
10 1998)
11 ¢ A8,  Siatev. deremy Strohmeyer, No. C144577, Guilty Plea Agreement (September 8, 1698)
121 A9 State v, Vemel] Evaps, No. C11607) > Judgment of Conviction (Jury Trial) (March 23,
| 2004),
i3
1 AlG. Statey. Vemeli Evans, No. ¢ 16071, Sentencing Agreement (February 4, 2004)
14
All. Statev. Moore, No. CR06-2974, Guilty Plea Memorandum (January 19, 2007)
15
B. Jury sentences
16
Bl. Statev. dames Scholl, No, C204775, Special Verdict (Mitigating & Aggravating)
17 {February 17, 2006) :
18 I B2 State v. James Scholl No. C204775, Verdict {(Febmuary 17, 2006)
198 B3.  State v, James Scholl, No. C204775, Judgment of Conviction (May 19, 2006)
20 1 B4.  Siate v, James Scholl, No. C204775, Verdict (February 15, 2006)
21 ¥ Bs, State v. Glenford Budd, No. ¢ 93182, Special Verdict (Mitigating & Aggravating)
(December 16, 2005)
22 '
h B6. State v Glenford Budd No. C193182, Verdict {December 16, 2005)
13 (Count I-Dajon Jones)
(Count II-Derrick Jones)
4 (Count Hl-Jason Moore)
S5EB7.  Sutev. Richard Powell, No. C148936, Special Verdict (Mitigating & Aggravating)
{(November 15, 2000)
6
(Count I-Samantha Scotti)
- )

(Count II-Lisa Boyer)
(Count Hi-Steven Walker)
(Count IV-Jermaine Waoods)

AA013
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State v. Richard Powell, No. C148936, Verdict (November 15, 2000)
{Count I-Samantha Scotti)

{Count II-Liga Boyer)
(Count I1I-Steven Walker)

{Count IV-Jermaine Woods)

State v, Patrick Randle, No. C121817, Verdict (June 14, 1996)
2A2M€ v. Patrick R andle, No. C121817, Special Verdict (June 14, 1996)
State v Patrick Randle, No, CI21817, Verdict (June 6, 1996)

. -

State v, Femando Rodriguez, No. C130763, Special Verdict (Mitigating & Aggravating)
(May 7, 1996)

(Count I-Brad Palcovic)
(Count I-Richley Miller)

State v. Fernandg Rodriguez No. C130763, Verdict (May 4, 1996)
{Count [-Bragd Palcovic)

(Count I1-Richley Milter)
State v. J onathan Daniejs No. C126201, Special Verdict (Mitigating & Aggravating)
(November 1, 1995)

(Count I-June Frye)

(Count I-Nicasio Diaz)

State v. Jonathan p iels, No. C126201, Verdict (October 26, 1995)
(Count II-Nicasig Diaz)

State v. Rogpald Ducksworth. No. C108501, Speciai Verdict (Mitj gating & Aggravating)
(October 28, 1993) ®

{Count I-Joseph Smith 1)
(Count [I-Vik; Smith)

State v, Ronald Ducksworth, No. C108501, Verdict (October 28, 1993)
{Count I-Josepl} Smith I

(Count I1-Vikki Smith)

; Séate v. Carl Martin No. C108501 Speciaj Verdict {(Mitigating & Aggravating) (October
28, 1993

(Count I-Joseph Smith 11T
{Count I1-Vikki Simith)

State v. Car} Mattin, No. ClOSSOl,Vcrdict (October 28, 1993)
(Count i-Joseph Smith Iy
(Count H-Vikk; Smith)
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" DAVID ROGER EILET
b 2 glarde%m n?fg.‘,’i‘," Attomney .
LY G‘!’é_é ..,;"..’ FE W e F UL
g 3 || 200 South Third Street kil3 210G
= Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211 . R
o 41 (702)4354711 c:‘fidc‘}a:;ﬁ...,zkm
o < || Attorney for Plaintiff cLery ¥
f_ﬁ L4
6 DISTRICT COURT
. CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
8 | THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
9 Plaintiff, ) .
Case No: C180047
10 -vs-
DeptNo: v
11 | RICHARD DEWAYNE ARMSTRONG,
. | #0658736 _
1z
13 Defendant.
14 JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
15 (PLEA OF GUILTY)
16 The Defendant previously appeared before the Court with counsel and entered a plea
17§ of guilty to.the crime(s) of COUNT 1 - BURGLARY (Felony); COUNTS 2 & 3 -
18 } ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony); COUNTS 4 &
i% } 6 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Feloay); and
20'1 COUNT 5-BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony), in violation of |
2l i NRS 205.060, 193330, 200.010, 200.030, 193.165, 200.010, 200.030, 193.165, 200.481:
thereafter, on the 16th day of October, 2003, the Defendant was present in court for
Q %‘ Wl | sentencing with his counsel, CURTIS BROWN and KEDRIC BASSETT, Deputy Public
E - 8 Defenders, and good cause appearing,
[
% = § THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said otfense(s) and, in
£ c2 S
O
27
28

Defendant is sentenced as follows:
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COUNT J] - a MAXIMUM term of (240) TWO HUNDRED FORTY MONTHS with 3

MINIMUM term of (96) NINETY.SIX MONTHS plus an equal and CONSECUTIVE

MAXIMUM of (240) MONTHS and 4 MINIMUM of (96) MONTHS for use of a deadly

Weapon, running consecutiye to Count ;

COUNT 1] - a MAXIMUM term of (240) TWO HUNDRED FORTY MONTHS with a

? " of (240) MONTHS and a MINIMITAL ~¢ sar

ARINIMIUM of (96) MONTHS for use of a deadly
weapon, running consecutive to Count If;

COUNT IV - a term of LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE pius an equal

gi
3
=
&
|
9
[
&
:
.O
5
~
i
-l
&
7
o
&
3
8

PAROLE for use of

»
Q.
8
23
~
£
8
b
‘5
L
h
S
L=
e ]

2

[ d

£

o

=
2

with (725) days credit for "y‘e served.

DATED this | day of October, 2003, ~ v N

y4 PAWPDOCSUUDG 1 gy 127601 doc
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‘Eq' 1 | GMEM
b "1 DAVID ROGER
b 2 § DISTRICT ATTORNEY
e Nevada Bar #002781
& 3 § 200 South Third Street
= I Las Vegas, NV 89155-221
o 4 Il (702) 4354711 o
g c Atorney for Plaintiff
i’ 5
6
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7
THE STATE OF NEVADA >
PlaintfT, CASE NO: Ci80047
9 DEPT NO: v
“YBa
i0
RICHARD DEWAYNE ARMSTRONG,
11 1 #0658736
12 2
Defendant.
i3
14 GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT ‘
15 d 1 hereby agree to plead guiity to: COUNT 1 - BURGLARY {(Felony - NRS
16 ¥ 205.660); COUNTS 2 & 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY
17 § WEAPON (Felony - NRS 193,330, 200.010, 200.030, 193.165); COUNTS 4 & 6 - FIRST
18 } DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.010,
19 § 280.530, 193.165); and COUNT § - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
20§ (Felony - NRS 200.481), as more fuily alleged in the charging document attached hereto as
- 21 | Exhibit 1", |
22 ~ My decision to plead guilty is based upon the plea agreement in this case which is as
.23 " foliows:
24 The parties stipulate that Defendant will reccive the maximum sentence on each
n .
8 > 285 §§ count. All counts will rup consecutive with each other. This plea is conditioned upon the
S m
3 2 g(, court sentencing the Defendant consistent with the plea agreement. If the court dectines to
g ‘: 'ﬁ'f u accept the stipulation, Defendant’s plea will be withdrawn at the discretion of the District
=
mMaI G Attorney.
) “
i
AAULSO1
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CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA
I understand that by pleading guilty | admit the facts which Support all the elements of

M5 O

h f o

Hi€ oiiense(s) to which I now Plead as set forth in Exhibit i
I undersiand that as a consequence of my plea of

imprisonment in the Nevada Department of Corrections as follows:

COUNT 1 (Burglary) - for a minimum term of not less than TWENTY-FOUR (24) months

and @2 maximum term of not more than ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) monihs. The

minimum term of imp:isonm'ent may not exceed forty percent (40%) of the maximum term
of imprisonment. } understand that | may also be fined up t0 §10,000;

COUNT 2 (Attempt Murder Wity Use of a Deadly Weapon) ~

S
té
"1
:%)
(Y
=Y
N
= |
o .
1
=
b
-
&
3
-]
H
}

than TWENTY-FOUR (24) months and a maximum term of pot more than TWO

HUNDRED FORTY (240) months. The minimum

forty percent (40%) of the maximum term of imprisonment:

term of imprisonment may not exceed

COUNT 4 {First Degres Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon) - life without the possibility

of parofe OR life with the possibility of parole with eligibility for parole beginning at twenty

2

AAQI35Z
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years (480 months);
COUNT 5 (Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon) - - for a minimum term of not less thag

3 ulall
TV IDAPT WY v
i ¥

civi Y-FOUR (24) months and a maximim term of not more than ONE HUNDRED
TWENTY (120) months. The minimum term of im

(40%) of the maximum term of imprisonment. | understand that ] may also be fined up to
$10,000; '

COUNT 6 (First Degree Murder With Use of 2 Deadly
of paroie OR life with the possibility of parole with el

prisonment may not exceed forty percent

Weapon) - life without the possibility
gibility for parole beginning at twenty
{20) years (480 months); OR a definiic term of FIFTY {50) years (600 months)
eligibility for parole beginning at twenty (20) years (480
consecutive term of life withou the possibility of parole

months) plus an equai and

OR life with the possibility of
parole with eligibility for parole beginning at twenty (20) years (430 months); OR a definite
term of FIFTY (50) years (600 months) with cligibil

ty for parole beginning at tweaty (20)
years (480 months);

I understand that the law requires me to pay an Administrative Assessment Fee.

I'understand that, if appropriate, | will be ordered to make restitution

~ N
1ULOr

to the victim of

am not eligible 10 serve the Sentences concurrently,

discretion to order the sentences served Concurrently.

I also understand that information regarding charges not filed, dismissed charges, or
harges to be dismissed pursuant 10 this agreement may be considered by the j

sentencing,

I have not been promised or guaranteed any particular sentence by anyone. I know

3
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21
22
23
24
25

h By entering my plea of guilty, i understand that § am waiving and forever giving t

that my sentence is to be determined by the Court within the limits prescribed by statute,

I understand that if my attomey or the State of Nevada or both recommend any

F a7

ecific punishment to the Court, the Court is obligated to accept the recommendation.

[ understand that if the Stage of Nevada has agreed to recommend or stipulate a

particular sentence or hag agreed not to present argument regarding the sentence, or agreed

Bot to oppose a particular sentence, such agreement is contingent upon my appearance in
court on the initial sentencing date (and any subsequen

[
wilk

ates if the sentencing is continucd).

I understand that if I fail 1o appear for the scheduled sentencing date or I commit a pew

criminal offense prior to sentencing the Statc of Nevada would regain the fil] rj
for any lawful sentence.

*earcerated on another charge or while 1 was on probation or parole that | am not
" eligible for credit for time served toward the insfant offense(s).

I understand that as a consequence of my-plea of guilty, if I am not a citizen of the
United States, 1 may,

in addition to other consequences provided for by federal law, be
remaved, deported, excluded from entry into the United States or denied naturali

AFMALYEE X

I understand that the Division of Parole and Probation wili prepare

sentencing judge prior to sentencing. This report will include matters relevant to the issue of
h sentencin c

, Mtencing, including my criminal history. This repost may

a report for the

contain hearsay information

regarding my background and crimipal history. My attorney and I wil] cach have the

contained in the report at the time of sentencing.

Opportunity to comment on the informat o
Unless the District Attorney has specifically

.
Tt i)
SakawALIZQAEIVILY

agreed otherwise, then the District Attomey

WAIVER OF RIGHTS

may aiso comment on this report.

n
=5 4P
FRTIR
the o

HOWiIng rights and privileges:

[. The constitutiona] privilege against self-incrimination, including the right to refuse

to testify at trial, in which event ¢

he prosecution would not be aliowed to comment to the

4
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jury about my refusal to testify.

2. The constitutional right to a spéedy and public trial by an impartial jury, free of
excessive pretrial publicity prejudicial to the defense, at which trial T would be entitled to the
assistance of an attomney, either appointed or retained. At trial the State would bear the
burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt each element of the offense charged.

3. The constitutional right to confront and Cross-examine any witnesses who would

6. The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an antorney, ecither

|| appointed or retained, unless the appeal is based upon reasonable constitutional jurisdictional

or other grounds that challenge the legality of the proceedings and except as otherwise

provided in subsection 3 of NRS 174.035.

VOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA

I have discussed the clements of all of the

original charge(s) against me with my
attomey and I understand the nature of the chare (s) against me.

I undegstand that the State would have to prove each element of the charge(s) against
me at trial.

I have discussed with my attorncy any possible defenses, defense strategies and
circumstances which might be in my favor.

AT

All of the foregoing elements, consequences, rights, and waijver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attorney.

I believe that pleadigg gg.i!l_.‘y and accentin

—— A Y prelir

this plea bargain is in my best interest,

and that a trial would be contrary to my best interest. -

"

I am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my attorney, and [ am
not acting under duress or coercion or by virtue of any promises of lcﬁiency.
set forth in this agreement.

except for those

i

¥
E-
e e ——— . — T
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10

|

agreement or the proceedings surrounding my entry of this plea.

My attomey has answered all my questions regarding this guilty plea agreement and

#5 conscquences to my satisfaction and [ am satisfied with the services provided by my
attorney.

DATED this_Z% day of,

AGREED TO BY:

AA01356
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b ] H CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL:
I_!- . .
b 2 1, the undersigned, as the attomey for the Defendant named herein and as an officer of
= ;¥ the court hereby certify that:
8 . 1. T have fully exgégined to the Defendant the allegations contained in the charge(s)
n 4 It to which guilty pleas arc being entered.
(o)}
a 3 2. 1 have advised the Defendant of the penalties for each charge and the restirution
) p that the Defendant may be ordered to pay.
. 3. All pleas of guilty offered by the Defendant pursuant to this agreement are
7 ¥ consistent with the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the Deferdant,
8 4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the Defendant;
9 { a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of pieading
- "guilty as provided in this agreement.
10
b. Executed this agreement and will enter ajl guilty pleas pursuant hereto
i voluntarily. : :
12 C. Was not under the influence of intoxicatin % liquor, a controlied substance or
other drquat the time I consulted with the de en%ant as certified in paragraphs
13 1 and 2 above. .
14 Dated: This 25 day of August, 2003, "'"'_)/ =
) / 3 /
16
17
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17 DAVID ROGER, District Altorey within and for the County of Clark, Stare of
18 § Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Count
{9 That RICHARD DEWAYNE ARMSTRONG, the Defendant(s) above named, having
20 i committed the crimes of BURGLARY (Felony - NRS 205.060); ATTEMPT MURDER
21 ﬂ WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 193.330, 200.010," 200.030,
22 § 193.165); FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony
23 , - NRS 200.010, 260.030, 193.165); and BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY
24 § WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.481), on or aboyt the 25th day of October, 2001, within the
25 |t County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary 1o the form, force and effect of statutes in such
26 § cases made and provided, and against the peace agd dignity of the State of Nev da,

/17 |

11/

EXHIBIT« L »

C— —— _
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0 ® @
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J .
b 1§ AINF
v DAVID ROGER
5 2§ Clark Count% District Attorney
i Nevada Bar #002781
-, 3 } 200 South Third Street
Q2 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155.221)
2 4 1 (102) 4354711 .
o 5 Attorney for Plaintiff
= DISTRICT COURT
6 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7 H THE STATE OF NEVADA,
- )
8 Plaintiff,
9 -vs- } Case No. C180047
o DEWA TRONG Dept No. \'
10 § RICHARD YNE ARMS g
. F #065873¢ ;
12 Defendant. AMENDED
13! INFORMATION

iimnulmooc
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COUNT | - BURGLARY

did then and there wilfully, uniawfully, and feloniously enter, with intent to commit a
felony, to-wit: assault and/or battery and/or murder and/or a felony, that certain building
occupied by BONITA ARMSTRONG, located at 5150 East Sahara Avenue, Building 16,

Wl ¥
fark Oy, INEVaqga.

COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and with the intent to

SAEhwil

aforethought and express malice, wilfully and feloniously attempt to kill ARIEL
ARMSTRONG, a human being, with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by the Defendant
shooting at and into the body of the said ARIEL ARMSTRONG with said fircarm.
COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and with the intent to kill, malice

aforethought and express malice, wilfully and feloniously attempt to kiil SIR LAWRENCE

ARMSTRONG, 2 human being, with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by the Defendant

shooting at and into the body of the said SIR LAWRENCE ARMSTRONG with said
firearm. )

CQUNT 4 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with

remeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforcthought, and/or during the perpetration
or attempt perpetration of burglary, kili BONITA ARMSTRONG, a human being, with a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by the Defendant shooting at and into the body of the said
BONITA ARMSTRONG with said firearm,

COUNT § - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, uniawfuily, and feloniously use force and violence upon

the person of ancther, to-wit: MALCOLM ARMSTRONG, with use of a deadly weapon, to-

------ "

wit: & firearm, by Defendant striking the said MALCOLM ARMSTRONG in the back of the
head with the said firearm.

111
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5 1
b 1 § COUNT 6 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
I_!-
b 2 did then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with
g 3 || premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforcthought, and/or during the perpetration
3
g 4 | or attempt perpetration of burglary, kill ANDRE MARCUS, a human being, with a deadly
g 5 ...,a,.w, to-wit: a firearm, by the Defendant shooting at and into the body of the said |
6 [ ANDRE MARCUS with said fircarm.
DISTRICT A’ A’ITORNEY
8 chada Bar #002781}
9
i0
11 BY I
12 District Atiorncy
0 ﬂ Nevada Bar #002781
14
15
16
17
18 .
19
20
21
22
23
24 ‘
25
26 | DA#0IF182763/kik
LVMPD EV40) 10252447
27 | BURG; ATT MWDW;
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¢
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
VS

WILLIAM

JAMES RUNDLE,
#147555
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Defendant,

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION

TrWFIY T AN

(PLEA OF GUILTY)

The Defendant previously appeared before the Court with counsel and entered a plea

of guilty to the crime(s) of COUNTS 1 & 4 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER (Felony), in

violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030; thereafter, on the 11th day of September, 2003, the

Defendant was present in court for sentencing with his counsel, NANCY LEMCKE, Deputy
Public Defender, and good cause appearing,

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said offense(s) and, in

addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee and $150.00 DNA Analysis Fee
payable to the Clark County Clerk, the Defendant sentenced as foliows: Deft.
SENTENCED as to COUNT I to LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections without the

s

possibility of parole and as to Count I 1o LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections

without the possibility of parole, COUNT Il CONCURRENT with COUNT I. FURTHER
/H
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RUERED, Restitution in the amount of $10,667.00 to pe placed in a must fyng for the
granddaughter, Gretchen Bellen, (0 be eédministered by the Wminisﬁalor

DATED this \,,:-( day of Septembe
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\ DISTRICT A'I'I‘ORNEY
& Nevada Bar #002781 SHIRLEYB. PARBAGUJRAE, CLERK
= 3 § CHRISTOPHER OWENS Yot ALt
o LUhiet Deputy District Attorne BY.
4 4 § Nevada 5001 190 Y APRl.WATKINS DEPUTY
& 200 South th Third Strcet
) 5§ Las chas NV 89155-2211
- (702) 4
- 6 Attomeys for Plamtlff
2 DISTRICT COURT
g I CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9 ” THE STATE QF NEVADA,
_ 1895L3
10 Plaintiff, CASE NO: C
DEPT NO: >~ ol SVRY
11 -V5-
12 ¥ WILLIAM IAM JAMES RUNDLE,
#0147555
13
14 | Defendant. _
15 GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT
16 I hcreby agree to pleagd guilty to: COUNT 4 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER (Felony -
17 | NRS 200.030) and COUNT | - FIRST DEGREE MURDER (Felony - NRS 200. 030)
18 || pursuant to North Carolina lford, 400 US. 25 (1970), as more fully alleged in the
19 || charging document aga ched hereto as Exhibit * and Indictment which is reinstated in total
20 || by agreement of the parties Temaining chargcs will be dismissed after sentencing..
21 My decision to plead guilty is based upon the plea agreement in this case which is as

v = —
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follows:

Both parties agree that I will recejve a sentence of Life Without The

Parole for cach Count and that the Counts will runconcurrent.

CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA

d that by pleading guilty t0 Count 4, I admit the facts which support the
elements of the offense(s) to which ] now

~J

plead as set forth in Exhibit "I". With regard to

o0

my plea of guilty to Count 1 he State will make factual Tepresentations of praof which |
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will adopt as the state of the evidence.

I understand that as a consequence of my plea of guilty the Court must sentence me to
life without the possibiity of parole. I understand that there will be no eligibility for parole
on cither penalty. [ understand that the law requises me to pay an Administrative Assessment
Fee.

I understand that, if appropriate, I will be ordered to make restitution to the victim of

being dismissed or not prosecuted pursuant to this agreement. I will also be ordered to
reimburse the State of Nevada for any expenses related to my extradition, if any,

I understand that [ am not eligible for probation or parole for the offenses to which I
am pleading guilty.

1 also understand that information regarding charges not filed, dismissed charges, or
charges to be dismissed pursuant to this agreement may be considered by the judge at

sentencing.

I know that my sentence is to be determined by the Court within the limits prescribed
by statute and this agreement.

I understand that if my attorneys and the State of Nevada are both recommending a
specific punishment 1o the Court,

I understand that if the State of Nevada has agreed to recommend or stipulate a

particular seatence or has agreed not to present argument regarding the sentence, or agreed
not 1o Oppose a particular sentence, such agreement is contingent upon my appearance in
court on the initial sentencing date (and any subsequent dates if the scntencing is continued).

I understand that if 1 fail to appear for the

e

oy 3

eduled seniencing date or | commit a new
criminal offense prior to sentencing the State of Nevada would regain the full right o argue
for any lawfu! sentence.

I understand if the offense(s) to which I am pleading guiity to was commined while I
was incarcerated on another charge or while I was on probation or parole that I am not

eligible for credit for time served toward the instant offense(s).

2
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understand that as a consequence of my plea of guilty, if I am not a citizen of the

United States, 1 may, in addition 10 other consequences provided for by federal law, be
removed. !‘lgnnﬂed exclud

¢d, deported, @ed from entry into the United States or denicd naturalization.

I understand that the Division of Parole and Probation wil) prepare a report for the

sentencing judge prior to sentencing. Thi

C e ae,
i

feport will inciude matters relevant to the issue of
sentencing, including my criminal history. This Teport may contain hearsay information
regarding my background ang criminal history. My attomeys and | wi

£
(13

opportunity to comment on the information contained in the report at the time of sentencing.

Unless the District Attorney has specifically agreed otherwise, then the District Attorney
ma

1ay aiso comment on this Feport.

WAIVER OF RIGHTS

By entering my plea of guil

¥, | understand that I am waiving and forever giving up
the following rights and privileges:

L. The constitutional privilege against selfiines imination, inciﬁding the right 10 refuse
to testify at ui#l, in which event the prosecution woul

Jury about my refusai to testify.

d not be allowed to comment to the

2. The constitutiona} right 1o a speedy and public trial by an impartial jury, free of

excessive pretrial publicity prejudicial to the defense, at which trig) | would be entitied to the

3. The constitutional right to confront and cross-examine any witnesses who would

testify against me.

4. The constitutionaj right to subpoena witnesses to testj

/ on my behalf,
5. The constitutional right to testify in my own defense,

6. The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an attomey

N
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YOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA

I have discussed the elements of all of the original charge(s) against me with my
understand the nature of the charge(s) against me.

understand that the State would have to prove each element of the charge(s) against
e at trial,

I have discussed with my atorneys any possible defenses, defense strategies and

circumstances which might be in my favor.

All of the foregoing elements, consequences, rights, and waiver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attorneys.

[ believe that pleading guilty and accepting this piea bargain is in my best interest,
and that continuation of the current trial would be contrary 16 my best interest.

11 " T gy e
H

am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my attommeys, and |
am not acting under duress or coercion or by virtue of any promises of leniency, except for
those set forth in this agreement.

1 am not now under the influence of any intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or

other drug which would in any manner impair my ability to comprehend or understand this
agreement or the proceedings surrounding my entry of this plea.
My attommeys have answered all my questions regarding this guilty plea agreement

and its consequences to my satisfaction and I am satisfied with the services provided by my
attorneys,

DATED

his 41 _da
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Chief Députy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001190
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L. 1 have fully explained to the Defendant the allegations contained in the charge(s)
to which guilty pleas‘are ing entered,

2. I have advised the Defendant of the pena
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2 i " CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL:
)
t':; 2 I, the undersigned, as the attorneys for the Defendant named herein and as an officer
& 2 of the court hereby certify that:
. 3
g
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£
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eundant of the penaities for each charge and the restitution
that the Defendant may be ordered to pay.

4
5
6

g 3. All pleas of guilty offered by the Defendant pursuant to this greement ase
7 | consistent with the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the Defer dant
8
9

4. To the best of my knowledge and belicf, the Defendant:

a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of pleading
guiity as provided in this apreement f

T e weE RAvac e WwiliwEil,

b. Executed this agreement and will enter all guilty pleas pursuant hereto
voluntarily,

al

¢. Was not under the influence of intoxicatin% liquor, a controlied substance or

other drug at the time I consulted with the defendant as certified in paragraphs
1 and 2 above.

Dated: This 2 I day of May, 2003. P s——
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" STE WART L. BELL
- 2 f| Clark County District Attorney
B Nevada Bar #000477
= 3 § CHRISJ. OWENQ
& Chicf Dﬂa ty District Attorney
o 4 || Nevada ar #001190
N 200 South Third Street
3 5 Las cgas Nevada 89155-221 1
5 (702 }435-471 1
6 ttorney for Plantiff
7
8 DISTRICT COURT
9 , CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
i0
11 H THE STATE OF NEVADA, }
12 Plaintiff, .
13 -V§- Case No. C189563
_ Dept. No. v
14 § WILLIAM JAMES RUNDLE,
#0147555
is INDICTMENT
16 Defendant(s).
17 J
19 § STATE OF NEVADA )
$S.
20 | COUNTY OF CLARK i
2] The Defendani(s) above named, WILLIAM JAMES RUNDLE, accused by the Clark
22 | Couaty Grand Jury of the crime(s) of MURDER WITH USE OF DEADLY WEAPON
23 I (Open Murder) (Felony - NRS 200, 010, 200.030, 193, 165); ROBBERY WITH USE OF
24 |} DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165), and THEFT (Felony ~ NRS
25 || 205.0832, 205.0835) committed at and within the County of Clazk, State of Nevada, on or
26 || between May, 1997 angd October, 2002, as follows:
27 4/
28 R/
B4
, EXHIBIT "1
]
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COUNT | - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER}

did, about or between April and July of 1997, then and there wilfully, feloniously,
} law, and with premeditation ang deliberation, and with malice
aforethought, kill WILLA RUNDLE, a human being, with use of a deadly weapon, to wir:

medications or drugs, by administering an overdose of prescription drugs to the said WILLA
RUNDLE, and/or by manner and means otherwise unknown, the defendant drrectly

cormitting said act or aiding and abetting persons unknown in the commission of said act

=3 ahr

by providing counsel, ¢ncouragement, planning and access to said person or persons, and/or
each person acting pursuant to a conspiracy to commit murder.
COUNT 2 — THEFT

did, on or between May, 1997 and August , 2002 then and there knowingly,
feloniously, and without lawful authority, commit thefi by converting, making an
unauthorized transfer of an interest in, or without authorization controlling property having a
value of $2,500.00, or more, lawful money of the United States, belonging to WILLA

RUNDLE, Clark County, Nevada, in the following manner, to-wit: by defendant obtaining
in excess of $2,500.00 in personal assets and monies of the said WILLA RUNDLE

following her untimely death by homicide, thereby converting, making an unauthorized

transfer of an interest in, or controlling without authorization, the money of WILLA

)
RUNDLE.

COUNT 3 - THEFT

did, on or between May, 1997 and August, 2002, then and there knowingly,
felonicusly, and without lawfuj authority, commit thefi by converting, making an
unauthorized transfer of an interest in, or without authorization controlling property having a
value of $2,500.00, or more, lawful money of the United States, belonging o Willa Rundle,
the United States Government, the United States Treasury Department and/or the Social
Security Administration, or by obtaining said money by a material misrepresentation with

intent to deprive that person or entity of the property, or by coming into control of mislaid or

Y Fred

misdelivered property of Wilia Rundie from United States Government, the United States
2 PAWPDOCSMNDAZ 1\21746 102 doe
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epartment and/or the Socia) Secunity Administration on under circumstances

2 H providing means of inquiry as to the true owner in the following manner, to-wit: by
3 1 defendant arranging for and/or obtaining in excess of $2,500.00 in Social Security benefits
4 % of the said WILLA RUNDLE, who was deceased and no longer entitied to said benefits,
5 | matenially misrepresenting by these action